
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee Meeting 
Thursday, November 30, 2017 

 
Table of Contents 

 

Contents 
Agenda .................................................................................................................................... 4 
Meeting Minutes .................................................................................................................... 6 
Study Timeline ...................................................................................................................... 13 
Agency Summary Data .......................................................................................................... 15 

History ............................................................................................................................................................ 15 
Legal Directives .............................................................................................................................................. 15 
Mission and Vision ......................................................................................................................................... 15 
Governing Body (i.e., director, commissioners, trustees, etc.) .................................................................... 15 
Employees and Organizational Chart ............................................................................................................ 15 

Exit Interviews .............................................................................................................................................................................. 15 
Figure 1A. Filled positions, turnover, and reason for turnover annually from FY 2000-01 through FY 16-17. ...................... 16 
Figure 1B.  Organizational Chart as of August 9, 2017 .............................................................................................................. 17 

Organizational Units ....................................................................................................................................... 18 
Agency Follow Up Information ............................................................................................. 19 
Agency Law Recommendations ............................................................................................ 21 

Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 21 
Recommendations not yet presented .......................................................................................................... 21 

Law Recommendation # 47: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2515 ............................................................................................................ 22 
Law Recommendation # 48: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2545 ............................................................................................................ 22 
Law Recommendation # 49: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1140 ............................................................................................................ 22 
Law Recommendation # 50: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1150 ............................................................................................................ 23 
Law Recommendation # 51: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1160 ............................................................................................................ 24 
Law Recommendation # 78: S.C. Code Ann. 50-23-11 .............................................................................................................. 24 
Law Recommendation # 84: Regulations 123-2 through 123-9 ............................................................................................... 25 
Law Recommendation # 86: Regulation 123-601 ...................................................................................................................... 26 
Law Recommendation # 87: Regulations 123.10 through 123.19.31 ...................................................................................... 27 

Recommendations Awaiting Action .............................................................................................................. 42 
Table 1.1. Law recommendations which may impact other agencies ...................................................................................... 43 
Table 1.2.  Law recommendations not impacting other agencies ............................................................................................ 50 

Human Resources ................................................................................................................. 55 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 55 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 55 

Hiring ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 55 
Salaries and Bonuses ................................................................................................................................................................... 56 
Employee Morale/Satisfaction .................................................................................................................................................... 57 
Drug Testing ................................................................................................................................................................................. 57 
Turnover ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 58 

Office of Media and Outreach .............................................................................................. 61 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 61 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 61 

Wildlife Magazine ........................................................................................................................................................................ 61 

Page 1 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017

file://OVERSIGHT/TMFiles/Committee%20Files/Natural%20Resources,%20Department%20of%20(DNR)/November%2030,%202017%20-%20Summary%20Data%20-%20Meeting%20Packet.docx#_Toc499113679


Litter ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 62 
Office of Support Services - Information Technology ........................................................... 63 

Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 63 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 63 

General ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 63 
Pocket Ranger Mobile Application .............................................................................................................................................. 64 
Record Retention/Archive ........................................................................................................................................................... 65 

Office of Support Services - Finance ..................................................................................... 66 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 66 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 66 

In General ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 66 
Credit Card Fees ........................................................................................................................................................................... 70 
Funds for unfilled positions ......................................................................................................................................................... 70 
Lease Agreements ....................................................................................................................................................................... 70 

Marine Resources Division ................................................................................................... 71 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 71 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 71 

Finances and Fees ........................................................................................................................................................................ 71 
Contracts ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 72 
Horseshoe Crabs .......................................................................................................................................................................... 72 
Loggerhead Turtle Nests ............................................................................................................................................................. 73 
Saltwater Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee (SRFAC) ................................................................................................ 73 

Land, Water, and Conservation Division............................................................................... 76 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 76 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 76 

Aquatic Plant Management Council ........................................................................................................................................... 76 
Soil and Water Conservation District .......................................................................................................................................... 78 
Flood Insurance Policy Surcharge ............................................................................................................................................... 78 
Scenic Rivers ................................................................................................................................................................................. 79 
Heritage Trust .............................................................................................................................................................................. 79 

Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division ........................................................................... 82 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 82 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 82 

Fish Kill .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 82 
Fish Hatcheries ............................................................................................................................................................................. 83 
Land .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 84 
Call-In Programs ........................................................................................................................................................................... 85 
Dike Repair and Maintenance ..................................................................................................................................................... 85 
Permits ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 86 
Outside Surveys ........................................................................................................................................................................... 86 

Office of Environmental Programs ....................................................................................... 87 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 87 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 87 

Federal Energy Regulation Commission (FERC) ......................................................................................................................... 87 
Deliverables .................................................................................................................................................................................. 88 

Law Enforcement Division .................................................................................................... 89 
Summary ........................................................................................................................................................ 89 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions .................................................................................. 89 

Employees .................................................................................................................................................................................... 89 
Training and Equipment .............................................................................................................................................................. 91 
Electronic tickets, records management, and mobile data information systems .................................................................... 92 

Page 2 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Boater Education ......................................................................................................................................................................... 94 
Performance................................................................................................................................................................................. 95 
Resource Allocation ..................................................................................................................................................................... 96 
Emergencies/Natural Disasters ................................................................................................................................................... 97 
Internal Affairs ............................................................................................................................................................................. 97 
Laws, Reports, and Testimony in Civil Litigation ........................................................................................................................ 98 

Exhibit A - Hiring Procedure ................................................................................................. 99 
Exhibit B  - Promotional Plan .............................................................................................. 104 
Exhibit C 1  - Law Enforcement Officer Career Path ........................................................... 107 
Exhibit C 2  - Marine Resources Division Pay Plan .............................................................. 111 
Exhibit C 3  - Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Pay Plan ................................................... 113 
Exhibit C 4  - Boat Titling and Registration Clerks Career Path ........................................... 115 
Exhibit D  - Bonuses ............................................................................................................ 121 
Exhibit E  - Satisfaction Survey Results (Feb. 1, 2006) ........................................................ 122 
Exhibit F  - Drug Testing Policies......................................................................................... 123 
Exhibit G  - Vacant Positions ............................................................................................... 124 
Exhibit H  - Exit Interview Forms ........................................................................................ 125 
Exhibit I  -  Fee comparison across states .......................................................................... 126 
Exhibit J  - Aquatic Plant Management Council By Laws .................................................... 127 
Exhibit K  - Conservation District MOnthly Report Example .............................................. 128 
Exhibit L  - Scenic River Criteria .......................................................................................... 129 
Exhibit M  - Wildlife Law Enforcement Officer salaries across states ................................ 130 
Exhibit N  - Internal Affairs Procedure................................................................................ 131 
Committee Contact Information ........................................................................................ 132 
 
 
  

Page 3 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



AGENDA 

Page 4 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



South Carolina 
House of Representatives  

 

 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SUBCOMMITTEE 
Chairman Edward R. Tallon Sr. 

The Honorable Katherine E. (Katie) Arrington 
The Honorable William M. (Bill) Hixon 

The Honorable J. Todd Rutherford 
 

Thursday, November 30, 2017  
10:00am 

Room 110, Blatt Building 
Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet 

streaming whenever technologically feasible. 
 

AGENDA  
 

I. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 

II. Discussion of the study of the Department of Natural Resources 
 

III. Adjournment 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



MEETING MINUTES 
 

Page 6 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

Monday, October 23, 2017 
10:00 am 

Blatt Room 110 
 
 
Archived Video Available 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina 
ETV was allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an 
archived video of this meeting by visiting the South Carolina General 
Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on 
Committee Postings and Reports, then under House Standing Committees click on 
Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a listing of archived 
videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 

I. The Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee meeting was 
called to order by Chairman Edward R. Tallon, Sr., on  Monday, October 23, 
2017, in Room 110 of the Blatt Building. The following members of the 
Subcommittee were present for either all or a portion of the meeting: 
Chairman Tallon, Representative Katherine E. Arrington, and Representative 
William M. Hixon. 
 

Page 7 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Minutes 
I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available 

to the public the minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not 
have to be verbatim accounts of meetings. It is the practice of the Legislative 
Oversight Committee to provide minutes for its subcommittee meetings. 

II. Representative Hixon makes a motion to approve the meeting minutes from 
the prior Subcommittee meeting.  

Rep. Hixon’s motion to approve the 
minutes from the October 17, 2017 
meeting: 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Rutherford    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

Discussion of the Department of Natural Resources 

I. Chairman Tallon asks if members have any motions based on information 
received thus far during the study.  Rep. Arrington and Rep. Hixon make 
several motions which are listed below. 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
approve each of the agency’s recommended changes to 
law which are in the agency’s Program Evaluation 
Report (PER) and the agency has indicated do not 
impact any other agency.  (The PER is available online 
for the public to view)  The item numbers presented at 
the meeting on October 9, 2017, include those numbered 
33, 43, and 85.  The item numbers presented at the 
meeting on October 17, 2017 include those numbered 11, 
13, 14, 15, 16, 21, 23, 25, 26, 28, 80, and 81.  

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Rutherford    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Arrington’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency email all 
municipalities a link whenever GIS data is updated. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Rutherford    Not Present 

Page 8 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Rep. Tallon    

 

Rep. Hixon’s motion that the Subcommittee Study 
include a recommendation that the agency notify the 
applicable county tax assessors whenever a property is 
deemed to be in a flood plain and the county tax assessor 
provide notice to the applicable property owners via the 
owners tax assessment notice. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Arrington    

Rep. Hixon     

Rep. Rutherford    Not Present 

Rep. Tallon    

 

II. Chairman Tallon explains the purpose of the remainder of the meeting today 
is to receive details about the agency’s Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries 
Division (WFF).  He reminds those who were sworn in during prior 
meetings that they remain under oath anytime they are with the 
Subcommittee or Committee.  Also, he swears in the following individuals: 
 

a. Mr. Ross Self, Chief of Freshwater Fisheries Section; and 
b. Mr. Billy Dukes, Chief of Wildlife Management. 

 
III. Ms. Emily Cope, Deputy Director of the agency’s WFF Division provides 

information on the following topics related to this division: 

a. Organization of the division; 
b. Products and services; 
c. Portions of the agency’s strategic plan related to the division; 
d. Strategic resource allocation; and  
e. Performance measures. 

 
Subcommittee members ask questions which Ms. Cope and other agency 
representatives answer. 
 

IV. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 

 

Page 9 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
Monday, November 6, 2017 

10:00 am 
Blatt Room 110 

 
 
Archived Video Available 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina 
ETV was allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an 
archived video of this meeting by visiting the South Carolina General 
Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on 
Committee Postings and Reports, then under House Standing Committees click on 
Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a listing of archived 
videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 

I. The Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee meeting was 
called to order by Chairman Edward R. Tallon, Sr., on  Monday, November 6, 
2017, in Room 110 of the Blatt Building. The following members of the 
Subcommittee were present for either all or a portion of the meeting: 
Chairman Tallon and Representative William M. Hixon. 
 

II. Chairman Tallon explains there is not a quorum physically present, so there 
will be no motions or votes during this meeting.  Chairman Tallon further 
explains Representative Arrington is watching the meeting as it streams live 
and will text members any questions she has for the agency. 

Page 10 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Minutes 

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available 
to the public the minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not 
have to be verbatim accounts of meetings. It is the practice of the Legislative 
Oversight Committee to provide minutes for its subcommittee meetings. 

 

Discussion of the Department of Natural Resources 

I. Chairman Tallon explains the purpose of the meeting today is to receive 
details about the agency’s Boating Access and Engineering Section; Office of 
Environmental Programs; and Law Enforcement Division (LE).  He reminds 
those who were sworn in during prior meetings that they remain under oath 
anytime they are with the Subcommittee or Committee.  Also, he swears in 
the following individuals: 
 

a. Mr. Richard Byrd, Chief Engineer, Boating Access & Engineering 
Section; 

b. Ms. Lorianne Riggin, Program Manager II, Office of Environmental 
Programs; 

c. Mr. Bill Marshall, Program Manager, Office of Environmental 
Programs. 

d. Captain Lee Ellis, Administration and Grants, Law Enforcement 
Division; and 

e. Captain Billy Downer, Education and Outreach, Law Enforcement 
Division. 

 
II. Mr. Breck Carmichael, Special Assistant to the Director provides information 

on the following topics related to Boating Access & Engineering Section: 
 

a. Organization of the division; 
b. Products and services; 
c. Portions of the agency’s strategic plan related to the division; 
d. Strategic resource allocation; and  
e. Performance measures. 

 
Subcommittee members ask questions which Mr. Carmichael and other 
agency representatives answer. 
 

III. Mr. Breck Carmichael, Special Assistant to the Director provides information 
on the following topics related to Office of Environmental Programs: 
 

a. Organization of the division; 
b. Products and services; 

Page 11 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



c. Portions of the agency’s strategic plan related to the division; 
d. Strategic resource allocation; and  
e. Performance measures. 

 
Subcommittee members ask questions which Mr. Carmichael and other 
agency representatives answer. 

 
IV. Subcommittee members ask questions related to Information Technology 

and the Rules and Regulations publication which Mr. Mark Litz, 
Information Technology Director, and Mr. Scott Speares, Assistant Deputy 
Director for Office of Support Services, answer. 
 

V. Chairman Tallon recognizes Mr. Pullium, DNR Board Member, to make brief 
remarks. 
 

VI. Colonel Chisolm Frampton, Law Enforcement Division, provides 
information on the following topics related to the Law Enforcement Division: 
 

a. Organization of the division; 
b. Products and services; 
c. Portions of the agency’s strategic plan related to the division; 
d. Strategic resource allocation; and  
e. Performance measures. 

 
Subcommittee members ask questions which Colonel Carmichael and other 
agency representatives answer. 
 

V. Ms. Shannon Bobertz, Chief Counsel for DNR, presents some of the Law 
Enforcement Division’s recommendations for changes in law.  The 
Subcommittee will continue receiving the recommendations at the next 
meeting. 
 

VII. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 

 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



STUDY TIMELINE 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Study Update - Department of Natural Resources

•March 11, 2015 - Agency submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report, which is available online.

•January 8, 2016 - Agency submits its Annual Restructuring Report, which is available online.

•September 2016 - Agency submits its 2015-16 Accountability Report/2017 Annual Restructuring Report.

•May 10, 2017 - Full committee votes to make the agency the next agency for the Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee to study.  Video of the 
meeting is available online.

•May 19, 2017 - Agency receives notice that it has been selected for study.

•June 27 - July 28, 2017 - Committee solicits input from the public about the agency in the form of an online public survey.  The results of the public survey are 
available online.  

•August 30, 2017 - Agency submits its Program Evaluation Report, which is available online. 

•September 25, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #1) to discuss the agency's history; legal directives; mission and vision; general information 
about employees; and agency organization. 

•October 4, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #2) to discuss the agency's Office of Media and Outreach; Office of Support Services; and 
recommendations relating to the agency as a whole. 

•October 9, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #3) to discuss the agency's Marine Resource Division and tour the agency's Marine Resource 
Divisions office in Fort Johnson, Charleston.

•October 16, 2017 - Full Committee meets with agency (Meeting #4) to receive public input.

•October 17, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #5) to discuss the agency's Land, Water, and Conservation Division.

•October 23, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #6) to discuss the agency's Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division.

•November 6, 2017 - Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #7) to discuss the agency's Office of Environmental Programs/Boating Access and Engineering 
Section; and the agency's Law Enforcement Division.

•November 30, 2017 - (TODAY) Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #8) to discuss materials received from the agency in response to Subcommittee letters; 
follow-up questions about agency divisions; and provide entities potentially impacted by the agency's law recommendations an opportunity to testify.

•Ongoing - Public may submit written comments on the Oversight Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's website (www.scstatehouse.gov)
Page 14 of 316 

Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 
November 30, 2017



AGENCY SUMMARY DATA 
 
In the Program Evaluation Report (PER), the Committee asks the agency to provide information, which the agency 
presented, along with additional information, during the past seven Subcommittee meetings.  Below is a brief 
summary of some of that data.  Additional information is available on the Committee’s webpage. 
 
History 
DNR provided testimony about its history during the Subcommittee’s September 7, 2017, meeting.  Key dates in the 
agency’s history are included in the meeting packet from that meeting.  Also, they are on the Oversight Committee’s 
webpage. 
   
Legal Directives 
The importance of conserving natural resources, as well as the traditions of hunting and fishing, are outlined in 
Article I, Section 25 and Article XII, Section 1 of the South Carolina Constitution.  The South Carolina Department of 
Natural Resources, through S.C. Code Ann. 48-4-10, administers and enforces State laws relating to wildlife, marine 
resources, and natural resources.  This statute is the basis for the agency’s mission and vision.  
 
Mission and Vision 
DNR's mission is to “Serve as the principal advocate for and steward of South Carolina's natural resources.”   DNR's 
vision is to “Be a trusted and respected leader in natural resources protection and management, by consistently 
making wise and balanced decisions for the benefit of the state's natural resources and its people.” 
 
Governing Body (i.e., director, commissioners, trustees, etc.) 
The governing body of the department is the DNR Board.  The board sets policy of the department, but it has no 
duty or authority concerning the management of, control over, or administration of the day to day affairs of the 
department.  (S.C. Code Ann. 48-4-50).  Members of the board are appointed by the Governor with the advice and 
consent of the Senate.  One member must be appointed from each of the seven congressional districts.  Board 
members serve four year-terms and until the successors are appointed and qualify. (S.C. Code Ann. 48-4-30).  The 
board appoints a director, upon advice and consent of the Senate. (S.C. Code Ann. 48-4-60).  The director serves at 
the pleasure of the board and is the administrative head of the department.  (S.C. Code Ann. 48-4-60).  Additional 
information about the agency’s governing body is available in the Subcommittee’s September 7, 2017 meeting 
packet and on the Committee’s webpage.  
 
Employees and Organizational Chart 
Figure 1A includes information provided by the agency about agency staffing.  Figure 1B includes the agency’s 
organizational chart, current as of August 9, 2017. 
 

Exit Interviews 
The agency indicates, in its PER, that during FY 2014-15 through FY 2016-17, it has an exit interview and/or 
survey when employees leave the agency.1  In the November 6, 2017, Subcommittee meeting, agency 
representatives testified the agency ’s internal recommendation #17 resulted from the agency’s analysis of 
information obtained through the exit interviews. 

Page 15 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1A. Filled positions, turnover, and reason for turnover annually from FY 2000-01 through FY 16-17.   
 

Temporary (hourly) 

Grant, Time Limited 

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 

For each 
year… 
 
First number 
is DNR. 
 
Second 
number is 
State. 

Page 16 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1B.  Organizational Chart as of August 9, 2017 

Page 17 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Organizational Units 
 
The agency’s Program Evaluation Report (PER) includes information about its organizational units.2  Every 
agency has some type of organization and hierarchy.  Within the organization are separate units.  An agency 
may refer to these units as departments, divisions, functional areas, cost centers, etc.  Each unit is 
responsible for contributing to the agency’s ability to provide services and products.     
 
To ensure agency employees understand how their work contributes to the agency’s overall ability to 
provide effective services and products in an efficient manner, each organizational unit has at least one 
(and in most cases multiple), objectives, strategies, or goals for which it is solely responsible.   
 
DNR is comprised of six organizational units: (1) Executive (includes Legal Office, Office of Human 
Resources, Audits Manager, Legislative Liaison, Special Assistant to Director, Office of Media and Outreach); 
(2) Office of Support Services Division; (3) Law Enforcement Division; (4) Marine Resources Division;  
(5) Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division; and (6) Land, Water and Conservation Division.  

Page 18 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



AGENCY FOLLOW UP INFORMATION 
 
The Subcommittee sent the agency follow-up questions after each of its previous meetings.  These letters 
include the following: 
 
• Letter from Oversight Subcommittee to DNR (October 11, 2017) 

o The Subcommittee sent this letter after its October 4 and October 9, 2017, Subcommittee 
meetings. The letter requests additional information about the following topics: (1) hiring;  
(2) salaries and bonuses; (3) drug testing; (4) turnover; (5) employee morale/satisfaction;  
(6) outside surveys; (7) finances and fees; (8) credit card fees; (9) lease agreements;  
(10) contracts; (11) rescues/emergencies; (12) litter; (13) pocket ranger mobile application; 
(14) wildlife magazine; (15) horseshoe crabs; (16) loggerhead turtle nests; (17) Saltwater 
Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee; (18) e-ticketing; (19) agency's law change 
recommendation; and (20) record retention/archive. 

 
• Letter from Oversight Subcommittee to DNR (October 23, 2017) 

o The Subcommittee sent this letter after its October 17, 2017, Subcommittee meeting. The 
letter requests additional information about the following topics: (1) aquatic plant 
management council; (2) heritage trust; (3) soil and water conservation district; (4) flood 
insurance policy surcharge; and (5) scenic rivers. 

 
• Letter from Oversight Subcommittee to DNR (October 26, 2017) 

o The Subcommittee sent this letter after its October 23, 2017 Subcommittee meeting. The 
letter requests additional information about the following topics: (1) fish kill; (2) fish 
hatcheries; (3) wildlife managed areas; (4) call-in programs; (5) dike repair and maintenance; 
(6) permits; (7) information technology; and (8) agency law recommendation. 

 
• Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017) and exhibits A through N 

o DNR provides responses to the Oversight Subcommittee's October 11, 2017, letter which 
included follow-up questions from the Subcommittee meetings on October 4, 2017, 
(Overview, Office of Media and Outreach, Office of Support Services, etc.), and October 9, 
2017, (Marine Resources Division). 

 
• Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017) and exhibits A through E 

o DNR provides responses to the Oversight Subcommittee's October 23, 2017, letter which 
included follow-up questions from the Subcommittee meeting on October 17, 2017, (Land, 
Water, and Conservation Division). 

 
• Letter from Oversight Subcommittee to DNR (November 13, 2017) 

o The Subcommittee sent this letter after its November 6, 2017, Subcommittee meeting. The 
letter requests additional information about the following topics related to the Office of 
Environmental Programs: (1) deliverables; and (2) Federal Energy Regulation Commission 
(FERC). The letter also requests information about the following topics related to the Law 
Enforcement Division: (1) employees; (2) equipment; (3) boater education; (4) deliverables; 
(5) performance; (6) finances; (7) emergencies/natural disasters; (8) internal affairs; and  
(9) agency recommendations from the Program Evaluation Report. 

Page 19 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017) 

o DNR provides responses to the Oversight Subcommittee's October 26, 2017, letter which 
included follow-up questions from the Subcommittee meeting on October 23, 2017, (Wildlife 
and Freshwater Fisheries). 

 
• Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017) 

o DNR provides responses to the Oversight Subcommittee's November 13, 2017, letter which 
included follow-up questions from the Subcommittee meeting on November 6, 2017, (Office 
of Environmental Programs; Boating Access; Engineering Section; and Law Enforcement 
Division). 

 
These questions and responses are grouped together by agency organizational unit.  They are included, 
with a brief summary of the organizational unit, in each of the next sections of this packet. 
 

Page 20 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



AGENCY LAW RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
In the Program Evaluation Report, the Committee asks the agency to provide a list of recommendations 
related to internal changes and changes in laws, which may improve the agency’s efficiency and 
effectiveness, or update antiquated laws.   
 
 
Recommendations not yet presented 
 
During the Subcommittee meeting on November 6, 2017, there were some recommendations for 
changes in law related to the law enforcement division which the agency did not have an opportunity to 
present.  Those recommendations are included below. 
 
• Law Recommendations 

o #47: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2515 
o #48: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2545 
o #49: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1140 
o #50: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1150 
o #51: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1160 
o #78: S.C. Code Ann. 50-23-11 
o #84: Regulations 123-2 through 123-9 
o #86: Regulation 123-601 
o #87: Regulations 123.10 through 123.19.31 

 
 
  

Page 21 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Law Recommendation # 47: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2515 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Amend.  The department requests that 
the requirement “return receipt requested” (RRR) for mailing be eliminated from hunting and 
fishing license suspension notification.  The Department of Motor Vehicles does not require 
driver’s license suspensions be sent RRR, therefore the department would like the same 
requirements.  The RRR is expensive, and most times it gets returned for non-receipt. Instead 
the department would request to send the letter regular mail to the last address known to 
the department, the same requirement for DMV.   
 
SECTION 50-5-2515. Notice of suspension; request for review. 
Upon determination by the department that a person or entity has accumulated sufficient 
points to warrant the suspension of any saltwater privilege, the department must notify the 
person or entity in writing, return receipt requestedthat his saltwater privilege has been 
suspended, and the person or entity must return all the suspended licenses, stamps, or 
permits in his name to the department within ten days. 
HISTORY: 2000 Act No. 245, Section 13; 2002 Act No. 342, Section 44. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 
 

Law Recommendation # 48: S.C. Code Ann. 50-5-2545 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Repeal.  The points received prior to 
the Marine Resources Act of 2000 would have expired. This statute is no longer necessary. 
 
SECTION 50-5-2545. Prior points and suspensions. 
All points received prior to the effective date of the Marine Resources Act of 2000 shall be 
assigned under the "commercial category" and remain effective until the validity of these 
points no longer exists. All suspensions and actions prior to the Marine Resources Act of 2000 
remain in effect under the previous mandates until expired. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 
 

Law Recommendation # 49: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1140 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Amend.  The department requests that 
the requirement “return receipt requested” (RRR) for mailing be eliminated from hunting and 
fishing license suspension notification.  The Department of Motor Vehicles does not require 
driver’s license suspensions be sent RRR, therefore the department would like the same 
requirements.  The RRR is expensive, and most times it gets returned for non-receipt. Instead 
the department would request to send the letter regular mail to the last address known to 
the department, the same requirement for DMV.   

Page 22 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
SECTION 50-9-1140. Suspension of hunting and fishing privileges. 
The department shall suspend for one year the hunting and fishing privileges of a person who 
has eighteen or more points. The suspension begins the eleventh day after the person 
receives written notice by mail, return receipt requested, of the suspension, and ends the 
same day the following year. The notice of suspension must be given by the department by 
depositing the notice in the United States mail with postage prepaid addressed to the person 
at the address contained in the records of the department. The giving of notice by mail is 
complete ten days after the deposit of the notice, and ends the same day the following year. 
A certificate by the director of the department, or his designee, that the notice has been sent 
as required in this section is presumptive proof that the requirements as to notice of 
suspension have been met even if the notice has not been received by the addressee.  
HISTORY: 1996 Act No. 372, Section 2. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 
 

Law Recommendation # 50: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1150 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Amend.  The Administrative 
Procedures Act was established subsequent to this statute being passed, so all license 
suspensions are reviewed by the Administrative Law Court.   
 
SECTION 50-9-1150. Notice of suspension; review by department. 
(B)A person or entity whose privileges have been suspended may appeal the decision of the 
department under the Administrative Procedures Act. 
(B) The person may, within ten days after notice of suspension, request in writing a review, 
and upon receipt of the request, the department shall afford him a review. The department 
shall notify him of the date, time, and place of the review and the person shall have the right 
to have his attorney present with him if he so desires. 
(C) If the person requests a review, the suspension shall be held in abeyance until the day of 
the final disposition of his review by the department and if the suspension is upheld, the 
suspension shall commence on the eleventh day thereafter and end on the same day of the 
following year. The review by the department shall be limited to a determination of the 
validity of the violations and points assessed. No probationary authority is given to the 
department by discretion or otherwise. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  Administrative Law Court 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Law Recommendation # 51: S.C. Code Ann. 50-9-1160 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Repeal.  The Administrative Procedures 
Act was established subsequent to this statute being passed, so all license suspensions are 
reviewed by the Administrative Law Court, not a Circuit Court Judge.  
 
SECTION 50-9-1160. Review by circuit judge. 
(A) A person whose privileges have been suspended under the provisions of this article may, 
within ten days after notice of the result of the review, apply to the resident or presiding 
circuit judge of the circuit in which the applicant resides for a review upon the record 
certified to by the board to determine if the action taken by the department is lawful and in 
accordance with the provisions of this article. The person shall have the right to have his 
counsel present with him if he so desires. 
(B) If the person requests a review upon the record the suspension shall be held in abeyance 
until the day of the final disposition of the review upon the record and if the suspension is 
upheld, the suspension shall commence on that day and end on the same day of the 
following year. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 

 
Law Recommendation # 78: S.C. Code Ann. 50-23-11 

 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Amend.  The demonstration numbers 
should be displayed, but not permanently affixed.   
 
SECTION 50-23-11. Dealer demonstration numbers; unauthorized use; penalties. 
(B) The demonstration numbers must not be permanently attached to the vessel but must be 
displayed on board at all times. 
If a dealer allows the operation of a watercraft with demonstration numbers, the dealer shall 
execute a form identifying the date and time, the specific watercraft, the dealer's permit 
number, the demonstration number, the purpose for which the watercraft is being operated 
and if for a prospective sale, the form must include the name of the prospective buyer, the 
date, the specific watercraft, the dealer's permit number, and the demonstration number. 
The form and the dealer demonstration number must be on board during operation.  The 
dealer demonstration number must be displayed but must need not be permanently 
attached. Operations with dealer demonstration numbers are limited to seventy-two 
consecutive hours. This form is not required of owners, employees, or corporate officers who 
carry dealer identification and who are authorized to use demonstration numbers as 
provided herein. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 

 

Page 24 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Law Recommendation # 84: Regulations 123-2 through 123-9 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Repeal.  These are no longer used by 
the agency and have been codified in statute. 
 
123-2 Accident Reports. 
The operator of every vessel involved in a boating accident shall file a report in writing 
whenever the accident results in loss of life, loss of consciousness, medical treatment or 
disability in excess of 24 hours, or property damage in excess of two hundred (200.00) 
dollars. 
Reports in death and injury cases shall be submitted within forty-eight (48) hours; reports in 
other cases are required within five (5) days. 
In the case of a reportable accident the operator of any vessel involved shall file the report 
with the S.C. Wildlife and Marine Resources Department, Division of Boating. 
Those having to file accident reports may obtain forms from Division of Boating, S.C.W.M.R.D. 
 
123-3 Lights. 
Every vessel at anchor, whether occupied or not, shall display anchor lights between official 
sunset and sunrise. Except, that anchor lights do not have to be displayed on a vessel 
anchored in a “special anchorage area” designated as such by the U. S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, the U. S. Coast Guard or the S. C. Wildlife and Marine Resources Department. 
 
123-4 Rule and Regulation Adopting Certain Federal Rules and Regulations. 
All aids to navigation and regulatory markers erected by the Corps of Engineers on the 
Atlantic Intra-coastal Waterway pursuant to Federal Law are hereby declared to be 
S.C.W.M.R.D. aids to navigation and regulatory markers pursuant to Section 50-21-710 of the 
1976 Code, and are hereby declared to be the law of this State. 
 
123-5 Renewal of Certificates of Numbers. 
Certificates of Number are void after the dates of expiration thereon. 
A number not renewed as prescribed by Section 50-21-370 of the 1976 Code, may be 
renewed after the expiration date of the Certificate of Number if the renewal application is 
received within one year from the date of expiration as shown on the Certificate of Number. 
Each renewal Certificate of Number shall be valid for a period ending three years from the 
date of expiration of the certificate renewed. 
A renewal application received more than a year after the date of expiration of the Certificate 
of Number shall be treated in the same manner as an application for an original number. 
 
123-6 How Vessel to be Numbered. 
1. No person may use a vessel unless it has a number issued on a certificate of number and 
the number displayed must: 
(1) Be painted on or permanently attached to each side of the forward half of the vessel 
except as allowed by paragraph 2 or required by paragraph 3 of this rule; 
(2) Be in plain vertical block characters of not less than 3 inches in height; 
(3) Contrast with the color of the background and be distinctly visible and legible; 
(4) Have spaces or hyphens that are equal to the width of a letter other than “I” or a number 
other than “1” between the letter and number groupings (Example: DC 5678 EF or 
DC-5678-EF, and 

Page 25 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



(5) Read from left to right. 
2. When a vessel is used by a manufacturer or by a dealer for testing or demonstrating, the 
number may be painted on or attached to removable plates that are temporarily but firmly 
attached to each side of the forward half of the vessel. 
3. On vessels so configured that a number on the hull or superstructure would not be easily 
visible, the number shall be painted on or attached to a backing plate that is attached to the 
forward half of the vessel so that the number is visible from each side of the vessel. 
 
123-7 Vessel Registration. 
1. In order to operate on waters of this state a vessel shall be registered and numbered in the 
owner’s name within thirty (30) days from the date it was purchased. 
2. In order to operate a vessel on the waters of this State during such thirty (30) day period 
the operator shall have in his possession the Bill of Sale or the Certificate of Title for the 
vessel. 
 
123-9 Display of Decals Bearing Title Number. 
1. A decal issued by the S.C.W.M.R.D., Division of Administrative Services, when the outboard 
motor is titled pursuant to Title 50, Chapter 23, of the 1976 Code, bearing the title number of 
the outboard motor, shall be affixed to the starboard side of the outboard motor cover. 
2. A decal issued by the South Carolina Wildlife and Marine Resources Department, Division 
of Administrative Services, when the watercraft is titled pursuant to Title 50, Chapter 23, of 
the 1976 Code, bearing the title number of the unregistered watercraft, shall be affixed to 
the right starboard outboard side of the transom within six inches of the top of the transom 
right above the waterline, or if there is no transom then affixed to the starboard outboard 
side of hull, aft, within one foot of the stern and within six inches of the top of the hull side, 
gunwale or hull/deck joint, whichever is lowest. On catamarans and pontoon boats with 
replaceable hulls, to the aft crossbeam, within eighteen (18) inches of the starboard hull 
attachment. Decal should not cover the hull identification number. 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 

 
Law Recommendation # 86: Regulation 123-601 

 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Repeal.  This is an antiquated 
regulation that is no longer used.   
 
123-601 Use of Warning Tickets. 
The use of warning tickets is limited to misdemeanor cases under Title 50 in which the 
Conservation Officer in his judgment determines that the enforcement of the law, the 
education of the public, and the protection of the resources of this state will best be served 
by the issuance of a warning ticket in lieu of a summons ticket. 
The form prescribed for such warning ticket shall be substantially as below and the ticket 
shall be issued in triplicate with one copy to the violator, one copy retained by the officer and 
one copy forwarded to the Chief of Law Enforcement or his designee. 

Page 26 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



The form of the South Carolina Wildlife and Marine Resources Department Warning Ticket 
shall have the following information: 
1. Name of Department -S.C. Wildlife & Marine Res. Dept. 
2. Name of Form -Violation Warning Notice 
3. Name of violator 
4. Social Security number of violator 
5. Address of violator 
6. Date of birth of violator 
7. Date of warning 
8. Violation 
9. Code section 
10. Location 
11. The following statement: “This warning carries with it a request to learn and abide by all 
Fish, Game and Boating Laws so that our natural resources can be safely enjoyed by present 
and future generations.” 
12. Signed by Conservation Officer 
13. Radio call number of Conservation Officer 
14. County of violation 
15. A listing as follows with a box to mark type of violation: 
i.e. Game and Fish, Boating, Commercial Fishing 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 
 
 

Law Recommendation # 87: Regulations 123.10 through 123.19.31 
 
Recommendation and rationale for recommendation: Amend and Repeal.  The statute and 
regulations allow for the uniform marking of wake zones as determined for safety reasons by 
the Director, or his designee.  Also, the department needs to update the title of the 
department related to Lake Hartwell and needs authority to enforce Army Corp of Engineer 
aids to navigation on Lake Thurmond.  These remaining regulations that are no longer used 
by the department.  
 
123-10 Restriction of Watercraft in Certain Areas. 
The use of watercraft shall be restricted in certain areas of the waters of the State of S.C. 
when the Director, or his designee, determines that such restriction is necessary in the 
interest of public safety. 
The regulated areas shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. 
Such signs and markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the 
U.S. Coast Guard and to the systems of uniform waterway markers approved by the advisory 
panel of State officials to the Merchant Marine Council, U.S. Coast Guard, in October 1961. 
No city, county, agency or person shall attempt to regulate the waters of this State by the use 
of the above mentioned signs and markers. 
 
123-11 Garden City Canal (Murrel’s Inlet Area) - Restriction of Watercraft. 

Page 27 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



The use of watercraft will be restricted in the waters in the Garden City Canal, in the Murrels 
Inlet Area, of Georgetown County and Horry County, S.C. The Garden City Canal begins at a 
point on Main Creek (near the Mouth of Murrells Inlet), runs parallel to the Atlantic Ocean to 
a point on the highway and causeway from the mainland to Garden City (S.C. Highway 
Number 26-51), and runs parallel to such highway and causeway to a point on Main Creek 
near the bridge of S.C. Highway Number 26-51. 
No person shall water ski or ride on a surfboard or similar object in the Garden City Canal 
except during the time of each day from one and one-half (1 1/2 ) hours before and after the 
mean high tide of the Garden City Canal. There shall not be any water skiing on any such 
object outside of the wake of the boat pulling the water skier. 
The regulated areas of Garden City Canal shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. 
The signs and markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the 
U.S. Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the advisory 
panel of State officials to the Merchant Marine Council, U.S. Coast Guard, in October 1961. 
 
123-12 Orange Canal, French Quarter Creek - Restriction of Watercraft. 
The use of watercraft will be restricted in the waters in Orange Canal, a tributary of French 
Quarter Creek, Berkeley County, S.C. The restricted or controlled area shall begin at the 
mouth of Orange Canal (where Orange Canal empties into French Quarter Creek) and shall 
extend to where Orange Canal flows under the bridge at S.C. Highway No. S.898. 
No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area of Orange Canal at any 
speed that will produce a wake. 
The regulated area of Orange Canal shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The 
signs and markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the U.S. 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the advisory panel 
of State officials to the Merchant Marine Council, U.S. Coast Guard. 
 
123-13 Saluda Lake (Jerry’s Cove) - Restriction of Watercraft. 
The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Saluda Lake, in 
the Saluda River, Greenville County. The restricted or controlled area shall be the cove known 
as Jerry’s Landing Cove, or Saluda Lake Motor Boat Club Cove, and shall include the entire 
Cove from Jerry’s Landing to six thousand (6,000’) feet from Jerry’s Landing. 
No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area of Jerry’s Landing 
Cove, or Saluda Lake Motor Boat Club Cove, at any speed that will produce a wake. 
The regulated area of Jerry’s Landing Cove, or Saluda Lake Motor Boat Club Cove, shall be 
identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and markers shall conform to the 
system of aids to navigation prescribed by the U.S. Coast Guard and to the system of uniform 
waterway markers approved by the advisory panel of State officials to the Merchant Marine 
Council, U.S. Coast Guard. 
 
123-14 Lake Marion (Cantey Bay) - Restriction of Watercraft. 
The use of watercraft will be restricted in the waters in a 318 acre area on the west side of 
Cantey Bay, Lake Marion, Clarendon County, S.C., from 1 November through 15 March of 
each year. The restricted or controlled area lies north of U.S. Highway Numbers 15 and 301, 
on the west side of Cantey Bay, and adjacent to the Bluff Unit of the Santee National Wildlife 
Refuge. For a more detailed description as to the courses, metes and bounds of the area 
herein restricted, reference may be had to the plat prepared by the U.S. Department of the 
Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, entitled “Santee National Wildlife Refuge”, showing an 

Page 28 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



enclosed area of 318 acres within “Cantey Bay”, and with the Legend “Area closed to boat 
traffic from November 1 to March 15 each year”. 
No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled 318 acre area of Cantey 
Bay, Clarendon County, S.C., from 1 November through 15 March of each year. 
The regulated area of Cantey Bay shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The 
signs and markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the U.S. 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the advisory panel 
of State officials to the Merchant Marine Council, U.S. Coast Guard. The regulated area lines 
will be posted with standard “Closed Area” signs during that period of the year when boat 
use is prohibited. 
 
123-15 Ashepoo River. 
The use of watercraft will be restricted in certain portions of the waters of the Ashepoo River, 
Colleton County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall begin at the Seaboard 
Coast Line Railroad trestle on the Ashepoo River and shall extend to the mouth of Horseshoe 
Creek. 
No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area of Ashepoo River at 
any speed that will produce a wake. 
The regulated area of Ashepoo River shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The 
signs and markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the U.S. 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the advisory panel 
of State officials to the Merchant Marine Council U.S. Coast Guard. 
 
123-16 Lake Hartwell or or Lake Thurmond. 
All aids to navigation and regulatory markers erected by the Corps of Engineers on Lake 
Hartwell or Lake Thurmond pursuant to Federal Law are hereby declared to be SCDNR aids to 
navigation and regulatory markers pursuant to Section 50-21-710, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws, 
and are hereby declared to be the law of the State. 
 
123-18 Lake Marion (Pine Island Unit) (Cantey Bay). 
Watercraft is restricted in certain portions of Lake Marion in Clarendon County from 
November 1 to February 28 of each year, except property owners and leasees adjacent to 
Cantey Bay with special permission from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The controlled 
area shall include a section of the Pine Island Unit, and an area between 100 Acre Island and 
Round Island. 
(For a complete text, see copy on file in the office of the Secretary of State.) 
 
123-19 No Wake Zones. 
No wake zones are created in certain portions of the waters of Lake Marion (Rowland’s 
Subdivision Cove, Brown’s Camp Cove, Birch Branch Cove, Polly Cantey Pond, Phillip’s Cove, 
Poplen Creek), The Beaufort River, Big Bay Creek, Broad Creek, Lake Murray (Wells Marina, 
Adams Bridge, Little Hollow Creek Bridge, Big Hollow Creek Bridge, Big Hollow Creek Wooden 
Bridge, SCE & G Park Launching Ramp Number Seven, Johnson’s Marina Cove), Lake Moultrie 
(Jack’s Hole Cove), Wateree Lake (Beaver’s Creek Bridge, Wateree Creek Bridge, Taylor’s 
Creek Bridge, Dutchman’s Creek Bridge, Colonel’s Creek Bridge, Wateree Marina), Foster 
Creek, Lake Wylie (Moores Landing Marina), Lake Greenwood (Cothram’s Bridge), Old Town 
Creek, Jeremy Creek. 

Page 29 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



(Those interested in the complete text of any of the regulations creating such no wake zones 
are referred to the copies on file in the office of the Secretary of State.) 
 
123-19.1 Lake Moultrie (Lions Beach) - Restriction of Watercraft. 
The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake Moultrie, 
Berkeley County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all waters within 
the swimming area at Lions Beach indicated on the attached map. 
No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area. 
The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 

 
 
123-19.2 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of Waters of Lake Murray, 
Lexington County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Lexington County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be a portion 
of the cove on the east side of Pine Island, indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed hereby all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.3 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of Waters of Shem Creek, 
Charleston County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Shem 
Creek, Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the 
area of Mt. Pleasant as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 

Page 30 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.4 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of Waters of Lake Murray, 
Lexington County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Lexington County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be the 
waters surrounding the Lakeside Marina facilities as shown on attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 4. That except as modified or changed hereby all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.6 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of the Waters of Lake Marion, 
Orangeburg County, South Carolina. 
That a NO WAKE ZONE is created in the Eutaw Springs area of the waters of Lake Marion, 
Orangeburg County, South Carolina, more specifically described in the map attached hereto 
and made a part hereof. 
That said NO WAKE ZONE shall be identified by the placement of appropriate signs and 
markers. 
 

 
 
123-19.7 Restrictions on the Use of Watercraft in the Waters of a Certain Portion of Goose 
Creek, Berkeley County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Goose 
Creek, Berkeley County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area 
of Dominion Hills Subdivision as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 

Page 31 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.8 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in a Certain Portion of the Water of Wappoo 
Creek, Charleston County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Wappoo 
Creek, Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the 
area of Parkwood Heights Extension as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.9 Modification of a No Wake Zone in the Lake Murray Marina Area, Lake Murray, 
Richland County, South Carolina. 
1. That the original No Wake Zone established on July 26, 1972, on Lake Murray Marina, Lake 
Murray, Richland County, South Carolina be modified so as to extend the placement of buoy 
“A” in a Northeasterly direction approximately 125 feet; and 
2. That the annexed area encompassed by the above modified placement of buoy “A” is 
hereby declared to be included in the No Wake Zone at said area. 
 
123-19.10 Restrictions on the Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of the Waters of Black 
River, Williamsburg County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Black 
River, Williamsburg County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the 
area of Scout Cabin as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.11 Restrictions as to Use of Watercraft Within Certain Areas of South Carolina Electric 
& Gas Company Public Park No. 1. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Lexington County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all 
waters within the swimming area at South Carolina Electric and Gas Company Public Part No. 
1. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 

Page 32 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 
123-19.12 Restrictions as to Use of Watercraft Within Boat Launching Ramp at Dreher Island 
State Park. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Newberry County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all 
waters within the cove at Dreher Island State Park boat launching ramp. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 
123-19.13 Restrictions as to Use of Watercraft in Certain Areas of Durham Creek. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters on Durham 
Creek, Berkeley County, South Carolina near Secondary Road 9 and Clyde Umphlett public 
boat landing, more specifically described in the map attached hereto and made a part hereof 
is hereby declared to be a SLOW TO NO WAKE ZONE: 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
makers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 
123-19.14 Restriction as to Use of Watercraft Within Swimming Area of Dreher Island State 
Park. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Newberry County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all 
waters within the swimming area at Dreher Island State Park. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 

Page 33 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
123-19.15 Restrictions as to Use of Watercraft Within Certain Areas of South Carolina Electric 
& Gas Company Public Park No. 3. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Murray, Lexington County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all 
waters within one hundred yards of the South Carolina Electric and Gas Company Public Park 
No. 8 boat launching ramp. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
 
123-19.16 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of the Waters of Lake Marion, 
Clarendon County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Marion, Clarendon County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the 
area of Taw Caw Creek as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.17 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Waters of Ashley River, 
Charleston County, South Carolina. 

Page 34 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Ashley 
River, Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be as 
indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.18 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Waters of Lake Wylie, Near 
Commodore Yacht Club, York County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Wylie, near Commodore Yacht Club, York County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled 
area shall be as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.19 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Waters of Lake Keowee 
called Lake Keowee Marina, Oconee County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake 
Keowee called Lake Keowee Marina, Oconee County, South Carolina. The restricted or 
controlled area shall be as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.20 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft on Certain Portion of Wappoo Creek, Charleston 
County, South Carolina. 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Wappoo 
Creek, Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be as 
indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 

Page 35 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.21 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Lake Russell and Savannah 
River, Abbeville County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake Russell 
and the Savannah River at Richard B. Russell Dam, Abbeville County, South Carolina. The 
restricted or controlled area shall be all waters 225 feet upstream and 975 feet downstream 
of the Richard B. Russell Dam. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
123-19.22 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Kiawah River, Charleston, 
South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Kiawah River, 
Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all waters within 
one hundred yards of the Kiawah Island Docking Facility. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform water - way markers approved by the Advisory 
Panel of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Page 36 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
123-19.23 Pack’s Landing Area of Waters of Lake Marion, Sumter County, Declared No Wake 
Zone. 
1. The Pack’s Landing area of the waters of Lake Marion, Sumter County, South Carolina is 
hereby declared to be a No Wake Zone. 
2. The No Wake Zone shall be identified by the placement of appropriate signs and markers. 
 3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.24 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Waters of Lake Marion, 
Orangeburg County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake Marion, 
Orangeburg County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area of 
Santee Cooper Resort Cove and shall include the entire cove. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws rules and regulations concerning 
boating in South Carolina Shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.25 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Waters on Lake Keowee, 
Pickens County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters on Lake Keowee, 
Pickens County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the Gap Hill area. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 

Page 37 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.26 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Lake Murray, Newberry 
County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Lake Murray, 
Newberry County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be all waters within 
one hundred fifty yards of the marina docking facilities at Dreher Island State Park. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
123-19.27 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portions of Scott Creek, Colleton 
County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Scott Creek, 
Colleton County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled areas shall be in the area of 
Scott Creek as indicated on the attached map. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the States Official to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
 

Page 38 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



123-19.28 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Battery Creek, Beaufort 
County, South Carolina 
1. That the use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Battery 
Creek, Beaufort County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area 
of Battery Creek as indicated on the attached map. 
2. That no person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed 
that will produce a wake. 
3. That the regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the States Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. That except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
 
123-19.29 Restriction on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Parsonage Creek, Murrells 
Inlet, Georgetown County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Parsonage 
Creek, Murrells Inlet, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area of 
Parsonage Creek as indicated on the attached map. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

Page 39 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
123-19.30 Restriction on Use of Watercraft in Certain Portion of Morgan Creek, Charleston 
County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Morgan Creek, 
Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area of 
Morgan Creek as indicated on the attached map. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 
4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
123-19.31 Restrictions on Use of Watercraft in a Certain Portion of Stono River, Charleston 
County, South Carolina. 
1. The use of watercraft will be restricted in a certain portion of the waters of Stono River, 
Charleston County, South Carolina. The restricted or controlled area shall be in the area of 
Stono River as indicated on the attached map. 
2. No person shall operate any vessel in the restricted or controlled area at any speed that 
will produce a wake. 
3. The regulated area shall be identified by appropriate signs and markers. The signs and 
markers shall conform to the system of aids to navigation prescribed by the United States 
Coast Guard and to the system of uniform waterway markers approved by the Advisory Panel 
of the State Officials to the Merchant Marine Council, United States Coast Guard. 

Page 40 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



4. Except as modified or changed, hereby, all prevailing laws, rules and regulations 
concerning boating in South Carolina shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
Presented and Approved by Board/Commission: Y 
 
Other Agencies Impacted:  None 

 

Page 41 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Recommendations Awaiting Action 
 
In its Program Evaluation Report, the agency included 87 recommendations for changes in law.  All 
recommendations were approved by the agency’s board.  The Subcommittee has currently made, and 
voted on, motions related to 31 of the total 87 recommendations for changes in law.  A list of the remaining 
recommendations for changes in law are included in Table 1.1 and 1.2 on the next page.  Table 1.1 includes 
recommendations for which other agencies may be impacted.  Table 1.2 includes recommendations DNR 
states do not impact other agencies.  Within Table 1.1 and 1.2 is information related to the Subcommittee’s 
contact with potentially impacted agencies as well as DNR’s responses to any Subcommittee questions 
related to law recommendations. 
 
 

Page 42 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Table 1.1. Law recommendations which may impact other agencies 
 

# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

2 3-5-100 
and 3-5-
170. 

MRD Repeal. The department no longer offers “leases” for oyster 
beds, but does this by permit.   

DHEC 
• Emailed Mr. Rick Caldwell on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/9/17 

3 10-9-320 LWC Amend. DHEC is the regulatory agency, therefore would be 
the more appropriate agency to administer the geothermal 
leases.   

DHEC 
• Emailed Mr. Rick Caldwell on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

4 11-37-200 LWC Repeal. This Council does not currently exist.   Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
DHEC  
• Emailed Mr. Rick Caldwell on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Rural Infrastructure Authority  
• Emailed Ms. Bonnie Ammons on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Ammons emailed on 11/6/17 stating the agency has no objection 

to the proposed change. 
Commerce Department  
• Emailed Secretary Hitt and Mr. Chris Huffman on 11/1/17   
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Jobs Economic Development Authority  
• Emailed Mr. Harry Huntley on 11/1/17 
• Mr. Huntley emailed on 11/3/17 stating it is his understanding the 

Council was eliminated in a prior law that was the SC Resource 
Authority.  He further stated he has been at JEDA for 10 years and 
there has been no action by this Council. 

Joint Bond Review Committee  
• Emailed Ms. Dianne Carraway on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Carraway emailed on 11/21/17 stating that after talking with staff 

of other entities that make up the Water Resources Coordinating 
Council, it is her understanding the Coordinating Council has never 

10/17/17 

Page 43 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

existed.  Therefore, the Joint Bond Review Committee does not 
oppose the recommendation.   

5 13-11-20 Agency 
wide 

Repeal. The New Horizon Development Authority does not 
exist.   

Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
SCPRT  
• Emailed Mr. Duane Parrish on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Toni Nance emailed on 11/1/17 stating New Horizon was done 

away after SCPRT worked out a deal to acquire Lake Wateree State 
Park property from Duke.  They also checked with Secretary of State 
and Governor’s Office and neither of them have this entity in their 
databases.  PRT supports the recommendation. 

Department of Commerce 
• Emailed Secretary Hitt and Mr. Chris Huffman on 11/1/17   
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Fairfield County Council 
• Emailed Mr. Josh Rhodes, Assoc. of Counties, on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Fairfield County Development Board 
• Emailed Mr. Josh Rhodes, Assoc. of Counties, on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
State Housing Authority 
• Emailed Mr. Robert Wilson and Ms. Tracey Easton on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Central Midlands Regional Planning Council  
• Emailed Mr. Josh Rhodes, Assoc. of Counties, and Mr. Tiger Wells, 

Municipal Association, on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
City of Winnsboro  
• Emailed Mr. Tiger Wells, Municipal Association, on 11/1/17 
• Mr. Wells emailed on 11/13/17 stating the message was passed along 

to the Winnsboro Town Manager and it did not appear the 

9/25/17 

Page 44 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

recommendation would negatively impact them, but would let us 
know if he hears otherwise. 

House of Representatives  
• Did not contact 
Senate  
• Did not contact 
Archives and History  
• Emailed Dr. Emerson and Mr. Steven Tuttle on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

12 48-9-30 LWC Amend.  Clarifies the SCDNR Board is the governing body 
from the Soil and Water Conservation Boards.  Also updates 
the name of the conservation service.  

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
• Did not contact 

10/17/17 

17 48-9-230 LWC Repeal.  This Advisory Board has never functioned, and the 
SCDNR Board voted to request the General Assembly to 
repeal the statute in November 2013.   

SC Department of Agriculture  
• Emailed Commissioner Weathers and Mr. Aaron Wood on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Clemson University  
• Did not contact 
SC Forestry Commission  
• Emailed Mr. Henry Kodama on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Stefanie Metts called on 11/21/17 and is following up with DNR 
SC Department of Commerce  
• Emailed Secretary Hitt and Mr. Chris Huffman on 11/1/17   
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
U.S. Department of Agriculture  
• Did not contact 
SC Soil and Water District Commissioners   
• Emailed Mr. Kenny Mullis, President of the SC Association of 

Conservation Districts and a Richland Conservation District Soil and 
Water Commissioner on 11/7/17 

• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Farmers’ Home Administration, Purchasing and Marketing Administration 
State Committee  
• Did not contact 

10/17/17 

Page 45 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

18 48-9-310 LWC Amend.  This is an antiquated statute and instead is 
accomplished through the regular budgetary process. 

Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Soil and Water Conservation District Commissioners  
• Emailed Mr. Kenny Mullis, President of the SC Association of 

Conservation Districts and a Richland Conservation District Soil and 
Water Commissioner on 11/7/17 

• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

19 48-9-1220 LWC Amend.  The electors are now determined by the State 
Election Commission.  July 15 is the requirement for the 
state election commission for ballots to be submitted.   

State Election Commission 
• Emailed Ms. Marci Andino and Ms. Janet Reynolds on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Andino sent a letter to the Subcommittee on 11/7/17 stating, 

“The SEC supports changing the date a petition must be submitted to 
be consistent with S.C. Code Ann. 7-13-351.  However, S.C. Code Ann. 
7-13-351 states “…if July 15 falls on a Saturday or Sunday…”.  The 
proposed change only includes if July 15 falls on a Sunday.  The SEC 
recommends adding Saturday to the recommendation.  Also, the 
deleted portion of this statute is also included in S.C. Code Ann. 7-11-
70, thus the SEC does not see the need for the deletion.”  

Soil and Water Conservation District Commissioners  
• Emailed Mr. Kenny Mullis, President of the SC Association of 

Conservation Districts and a Richland Conservation District Soil and 
Water Commissioner on 11/7/17 

• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

20 48-9-1250 LWC Amend.  The Commission does not use the agricultural agent 
as their secretary, nor do they utilize their offices. This is an 
antiquated statute.   

State Election Commission  
• Emailed Ms. Marci Andino and Ms. Janet Reynolds on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Andino sent a letter to the Subcommittee on 11/7/17 stating the 

recommendation has no impact on the SEC. 
Department of Agriculture  
• Emailed Commissioner Weathers and Mr. Aaron Wood on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Attorney General  
• Emailed Attorney General Wilson on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

Page 46 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

Soil and Water Conservation District Commissioners  
• Emailed Mr. Kenny Mullis, President of the SC Association of 

Conservation Districts and a Richland Conservation District Soil and 
Water Commissioner on 11/7/17 

• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
22 48-9-1510 

through 
1870 

LWC Repeal.  These are antiquated statutes and the Commissions 
do not perform this function.  

Soil and Water Conservation District Commissioners 
• Emailed Mr. Kenny Mullis, President of the SC Association of 

Conservation Districts and a Richland Conservation District Soil and 
Water Commissioner on 11/7/17 

• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

24 48-22-20 LWC Repeal.  This change occurred in 1993 and is no longer 
required in statute.   

Department of Administration  
• Emailed Ms. Marcia Adams on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
SFAA  
• Emailed Mr. Grant Gillespie on 11/1/17 
• Mr. Gillespie emailed on 11/16/17 stating they have no problem with 

the recommendation 

10/17/17 

27 49-3-30 LWC Repeal.  This transfer to SCDHEC and SCDNR already 
occurred, so the statute is no longer necessary.   

DHEC 
• Emailed Mr. Rick Caldwell on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/17/17 

30 50-1-220 Agency 
wide 

Amend.  Statute referred to no longer exists (50-1-230). SC Forestry Commission 
• Emailed Mr. Henry Kodama on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Stefanie Metts called on 11/21/17 and is following up with DNR 

9/25/17 

36 50-3-180 Agency 
wide 

Repeal.  These are two statutes regarding Mitigation Trust 
Funds- with almost identical language (see below).  S.C. Code 
Ann 50-3-180 can be eliminated, as 50-1-130 is adequate.  

SC Treasurer 
• Emailed Treasurer Loftis, Ms. Clarissa Adams, and Mr. Edward Frasier 

on 11/1/17 
• Agency responded via email on 11/20/17 stating the 

recommendation has a minimal impact on their agency. 

9/25/17 

38 50-3-320 Agency 
wide 

Amend.  The department purchases bonds for all DLEOs and 
department employees, so an individual bond is no longer 
required. Also, the board is not involved in day to day 
operation of the department. 

Secretary of State 
• Emailed Secretary Hammond and Ms. Melissa Dunlap on 11/1/17 
• Agency responded via letter on 11/22/17 stating “The Secretary of 

State’s Office will transmit the commissions of all enforcement 

9/25/17 

Page 47 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

officers to the department and not to the DNR Board if the 
recommendation is approved and implement by statutory revision.” 

41 50-3-510 WFF Amend.  The department employs a forester, so it is no 
longer necessary to require that the State Forester approve 
timber sales.  Allows the department to do this if necessary. 

SC Forestry Commission  
• Emailed Mr. Henry Kodama on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Stefanie Metts called on 11/21/17 and is following up with DNR 

10/23/17 

45 50-5-1950 MRD Repeal.  The Saltwater Recreational Fisheries Advisory 
Committee (SRFAC) was established in 1992 as an oversight 
mechanism to give recreational fishermen assurance that 
newly established license revenues would be used to 
effectively support programs, projects and activities that 
would benefit SC saltwater recreational fisheries.  For more 
than 25 years the SCDNR has used all related funds 
exclusively to support and enhance saltwater reactional 
fisheries.  Given this proven track record of success in 
meeting the intent of the law and proper usage of these 
revenues there is no longer the need for continuing this 
particular oversight mechanism.  Close public scrutiny and 
expectations, as well as general oversight of activities 
through the Marine Advisory Committee are adequate.  

 Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/9/17 

50 50-9-1150 LE Amend.  The APA was established subsequent to this statute 
being passed, so all license suspensions are reviewed by the 
Administrative Law Court.   

Administrative Law Court 
• Emailed Ms. Jana Shealy on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

Will 
present 
today 

51 50-9-1160 LE Repeal.  The APA was established subsequent to this statute 
being passed, so all license suspensions are reviewed by the 
Administrative Law Court, not a Circuit Court Judge.  

Administrative Law Court 
• Emailed Ms. Jana Shealy on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

Will 
present 
today 

57 50-13-1415 LWC Amend.  Clemson has a regulation that is a current list of 
invasive species that SCNDR would like to utilize. 

Clemson 
• Did not contact 

10/17/17 

59 50-15-10 
through 50-
15-40 

WFF Amend.  The department deals with the day to day actions of 
the agency, the board governs policy.  In addition, the Act 
refers to appendices that are no longer utilized.  Specifically 
Appendices A and D no longer exist in current versions of the 
C.F.R.  Federally listed species are now listed in a table which 
is part of 50 C.F.R. Section 17.11.  The proposed change 

 Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/23/17 

Page 48 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

would update the statutes to list the current federal citation 
for Endangered Species list.  

63 50-19-210 
through 50-
19-240 

Agency 
wide 

Repeal.  This Board does not exist.  Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

9/25/17 

74 50-19-1935 WFF Repeal.  This study was completed in the late 1980s and the 
statute is no longer necessary. 

DHEC 
• Emailed Mr. Rick Caldwell on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 

10/23/17 

79 51-13-2010 Agency 
wide 

Repeal.  The Enoree River Greenway Commission does not 
currently exist. There are other statutes in Article 23, but this 
is the only one that mentions SCDNR.  

U.S. Forest Service  
• Did not contact 
SCPRT 
• Emailed Mr. Duane Parrish on 11/1/17 
• Ms. Toni Nance emailed on 11/1/17 stating the agency has no 

recollection of the Enoree River Greenway Commission.  They 
checked with Secretary of State and Governor’s Office and neither of 
them have this entity in their databases.  PRT supports the 
recommendation. 

9/25/17 

83 51-17-310 
through 51-
17-360 

LWC Repeal.  The Heritage Trust Revenue Bond has been retired, 
and the statute has expired.   

Department of Administration  
• Emailed Ms. Marcia Adams on 11/1/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
Governor’s Office 
• Emailed Mr. Mark Plowden on 11/16/17 
• Received no response with opposition to the recommendation 
State Fiscal Accountability Authority  
• Emailed Mr. Grant Gillespie on 11/1/17 
• Mr. Gillespie emailed on 11/16/17 stating they have no problem with 

the recommendation 
SC Treasurer 
• Emailed Treasurer Loftis, Ms. Clarissa Adams, and Mr. Edward Frasier 

on 11/1/17 
• Agency responded via email on 11/20/17 stating the 

recommendation has a minimal impact on their agency. 

10/17/17 

Page 49 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Table 1.2.  Law recommendations not impacting other agencies 
 
 

# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

6 17-22-50 LE The statute does not include saltwater points, only 
freshwater and hunting points violations.   

No other impacted agencies 11/6/17 

7 47-3-310 
through 47-
3-320 

LE Repeal.  This is an antiquated statute.   No other impacted agencies 11/6/17 

8 47-3-510 
through 
520 and 47-
3-550 

WFF Repeal.  These are antiquated statutes, and there are many 
other mechanisms to register and track dogs. The 
department requests that the statutes be repealed. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

29 49-30-40 
through 49-
30-90 

LE Repeal.  There are no longer any permitted structures, as all 
the permits expired in 2012.  The Fund has not been funded 
in some time, so the agency has no funds to remove the 
remaining unpermitted structures.  Ideally, there would be 
additional funds to remove the structures, otherwise the 
department requests that the statutes be repealed.   

No other impacted agencies 11/6/17 

37 50-3-315 LE Amend.  The department establishes a training program 
through the division, not regulation. 

No other impacted agencies 11/6/17 

39 50-3-350 LE Amend.  The department shield has different language on it 
than is required in statute. 

No other impacted agencies 
 
The Subcommittee asked if the agency would oppose amending 
the statute to require the agency to promulgate regulations 
describing the official badge to make it easier now, and in the 
future, for the agency to update the description of the official 
badge.  The agency provided the following response1: The agency 
agrees with the recommendation and would not oppose it. 

11/6/17 

40 50-3-395 LE Amend.  The department does not set the form of warning 
tickets by regulation.   

No other impacted agencies 11/6/17 

1 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 27 

Page 50 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

44 50-5-25 
and 50-9-
960 

MRD Amend.  The department would like to eliminate the 
Mariculture Resource and Development Fund and instead 
give authorization to deposit the funds in the Marine 
Resources Fund. 

No other impacted agencies 10/9/17 

46 50-5-2510 LE Amend.  The department requests that the requirement 
“return receipt requested” (RRR) for mailing be eliminated 
from hunting and fishing license suspension notifications.  
The Department of Motor Vehicles does not require driver’s 
license suspensions be sent RRR, therefore the department 
would like the same requirements.  The RRR is expensive, 
and most times it gets returned for non-receipt. Instead the 
department would request to send the letter regular mail to 
the last address known to the department, the same 
requirement for DMV.   

No other impacted agencies 
 
The Subcommittee asked how much the agency spent in the last 
three fiscal years sending information return receipt requested.  
The agency provided the following response:2 Over the last three 
fiscal years the agency has spent $ 7,312.00 sending notices 
return receipt requested.   If these had been sent through 
standard USPS it would have cost only $547.00 over the last 
three fiscal years. 

11/6/17 

47 50-5-2515 LE Amend.  The department requests that the requirement 
“return receipt requested” (RRR) for mailing be eliminated 
from hunting and fishing license suspension notification.  
The Department of Motor Vehicles does not require driver’s 
license suspensions be sent RRR, therefore the department 
would like the same requirements.  The RRR is expensive, 
and most times it gets returned for non-receipt. Instead the 
department would request to send the letter regular mail to 
the last address known to the department, the same 
requirement for DMV.   

No other impacted agencies 
 
The Subcommittee asked how much the agency spent in the last 
three fiscal years sending information return receipt requested.  
The agency provided the following response:3  Over the last three 
fiscal years the agency has spent $ 7,312.00 sending notices 
return receipt requested.   If these had been sent through 
standard USPS it would have cost only $547.00 over the last 
three fiscal years. 

Will 
present 
today 

48 50-5-2545 LE Repeal.  The points received prior to the Marine Resources 
Act of 2000 would have expired. This statute is no longer 
necessary. 

No other impacted agencies Will 
present 
today 

49 50-9-1140 LE Amend.  The department requests that the requirement 
“return receipt requested” (RRR) for mailing be eliminated 
from hunting and fishing license suspension notification.  

No other impacted agencies 
 

Will 
present 
today 

2 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 28 
3 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 28 

Page 51 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

The Department of Motor Vehicles does not require driver’s 
license suspensions be sent RRR, therefore the department 
would like the same requirements.  The RRR is expensive, 
and most times it gets returned for non-receipt. Instead the 
department would request to send the letter regular mail to 
the last address known to the department, the same 
requirement for DMV.   

The Subcommittee asked how much the agency spent in the last 
three fiscal years sending information return receipt requested.  
The agency provided the following response:4 Over the last three 
fiscal years the agency has spent $ 7,312.00 sending notices 
return receipt requested.   If these had been sent through 
standard USPS it would have cost only $547.00 over the last 
three fiscal years. 

52 50-11-851 WFF Repeal.  This is already covered in S.C. Code Ann. 50-11-853, 
so it is unnecessary.  

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

53 50-11-980 WFF Amend.  The department has used GIS technology to update 
the map that accompanied the original legislation.  The 
coordinates that were in the statute did not match the map, 
this is updating the statute to reflect the correct map.   

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

54 50-11-1110 
through 50-
11-1120 

WFF Repeal.  These statutes are antiquated. The department has 
the authority to close seasons based on environmental 
conditions.   

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

55 50-11-1350 
to 1430 

WFF Amend and Repeal.  Pen-raised quail are still considered 
pen-raised, even if later released.  Also, the remaining 
statutes are antiquated the department does not see a 
resource need to regulate pen raised quail businesses.   

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

56 50-13-675 WFF Amend.  Lake Jocassee has a small prey base, because it is 
not a fertile system and fish are very vulnerable to cast nets, 
therefore the department requests that Lake Jocassee be 
added to 50-13-675. 

No other impacted agencies 
 
The Subcommittee requested additional explanation and support 
for why the agency requests Lake Jocassee (Oconee and Pickens 
Counties) be added to SC Code 50-13-675. 
The agency provided the following response:5  Lake Jocassee is a 
clear, low productivity lake with a very limited prey base.  
Jocassee has the lowest standing stock, 50 pounds per acre, of all 
larger reservoirs in SC.  Prior to 2013 non- game fish devices were 
not allowed on Lake Jocassee.  SCDNR studies have indicated that 

10/23/17 

4 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 28 
5 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 15 

Page 52 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

the prey base is too limited to support an historic trout fishery 
there.  The limited prey base has been stressed further by the 
establishment and expansion of spotted bass in the lake.  The 
SCDNR staff believe the prey base at Jocassee is not abundant 
enough to support the predators in the system and be 
additionally exploited by non-game fish devices.  SCDNR 
recommends prohibiting the use of non-game fish devices in Lake 
Jocassee in order to insure the health of the lake's recreational 
fishery. 

58 50-13-1936 WFF Repeal.  The federal government has not operated Walhalla 
Fish Hatchery since the mid-1990s, and the fee would have 
been requested at that time. The statute is no longer 
necessary. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

60 50-16-20 WFF Amend.  The department requests that the importation of 
the listed species be completely regulated by the 
department by permit, to protect the native natural 
resources of the state. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

64 50-19-250 WFF Repeal.  There is no biological reason to disallow night fishing 
in this area. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

65 50-19-450 WFF Repeal.  This is an antiquated statute. No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

66 50-19-710 WFF Repeal.  This statute expired in 2015.   No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

69 50-19-1190 WFF Repeal.  This Sanctuary does not exist, and the lake has been 
renamed. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

71 50-19-1510 WFF Repeal.  This is a violation of the Migratory Bird Treaty Act.  A 
hunting license is required to hunt crows. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

75 50-19-2310 WFF Repeal.  There is no scientific reason for a closed season on 
this water. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

76 50-19-2330 WFF Repeal.  The department has the authority elsewhere in the 
code to control nongame fish. 

No other impacted agencies 10/23/17 

Page 53 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



# Law Org. 
Unit 

Rationale Other impacted agencies 
 

Mtg(s) -  
presented 

or 
discussed 

78 50-23-11 LE Amend.  The demonstration numbers should be displayed, 
but not permanently affixed.   

No other impacted agencies Will 
present 
today 

82 51-17-150 LWC Amend.  Department requests that the planned five year 
acquisition notification be eliminated as generally these are 
not known, and sometimes, due to contract negotiations, 
would like to keep those from being public knowledge. 

No other impacted agencies 10/17/17 

84 Regulations 
123-2 
through 
123-9 

LE Repeal.  These are no longer used by the agency and have 
been codified in statute. 

No other impacted agencies 
 
The Subcommittee asked the agency to provide the statute 
numbers in which these regulations are codified.  The agency 
provided the following response:6  The regulations have been 
codified in the following statutes: S.C. Code Ann. Sec. 50-21- 130; 
50-21-170; and 50-21-710; 50-23-310 through 360. 

Will 
present 
today 

86 Regulation 
123-601 

LE Repeal.  This is an antiquated regulation that is no longer 
used.   

No other impacted agencies Will 
present 
today 

87 Regulations 
123.10 
through 
123.19.31 

LE Amend and Repeal.  The statute and regulations allow for 
the uniform marking of wake zones as determined for safety 
reasons by the Director, or his designee.  Also, the 
department needs to update the title of the department 
related to Lake Hartwell and needs authority to enforce 
Army Corp of Engineer aids to navigation on Lake Thurmond.  
These remaining regulations that are no longer used by the 
department.  

No other impacted agencies Will 
present 
today 

 
 
 
 
 

6 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 29 

Page 54 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 
Summary 
 
Executive is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit includes the Legal Office, Office of Human 
Resources, Audits Manager, Legislative Liaison, Special Assistant to Director, and Office of Media and 
Outreach.   It supports the agency’s core mission by providing quality and efficient support and programs, 
including legal services, human resources, audit management, legislative support, environmental review 
for impact, engineering, and media and outreach.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 

Hiring 
• For each division please provide:  

o Steps in the hiring process, including who is involved in each step7 
 
Supervisors send a request to post a vacancy (Requisition) up the chain of command. 
After verifying paperwork is correct, Human Resources posts the position.  The posted 
position closes and Human Resources sends the packet with all qualified applicants to 
the selecting official (supervisors).  The Division supervisors interview in accordance 
with Agency Directives.  Once Division supervisors have made a selection, the packet 
is sent up the chain of command.  Human Resources conducts background checks.  
After reviewing the background checks for acceptability, the Director signs the 
Personnel Transaction Request form. 
 
Hiring and promotions are conducted in accordance with Human Resources 
Regulations.   See attached Exhibit A with DNR Law Enforcement Division Directive D347. 

 
o Number of new hire applicants chosen by the division that were denied by the agency director, 

each year for the last three fiscal years8 
 

None. 
 

o Steps in the promotion process, including who is involved in each step9 
 

Supervisors send a request to post a vacancy (Requisition) up the chain of command. 
After verifying paperwork is correct, Human Resources posts the position.  The posted 

7 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 1 and Exhibit A 
8 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 1 
9 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 1 and Exhibit B 

Page 55 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



position closes and Human Resources sends the packet with all qualified applicants to 
the selecting official (supervisors).  The Division supervisors interview in accordance 
with Agency Directives.  Once Division supervisors have made a selection, the packet is 
sent up the chain of command.  Human Resources conducts background checks.  After 
reviewing the background checks for acceptability, the Director signs the Personnel 
Transaction Request form. 
 
Hiring and promotions are conducted in accordance with Human Resources 
Regulations.   See attached Exhibit B with DNR Law Enforcement Division Directive D348. 

 
o Number of promotion applicants chosen by the division that were denied by the agency 

director, each year for the last three fiscal years10 
 

 None. 
 
 

Salaries and Bonuses 
• Please outline the career path in the Law Enforcement Division, pay plans in the Wildlife and 

Freshwater Fisheries Division and Marine Resources Division, and salary adjustments based on 
performance in the Office of Support Services Boat Titling/Registration section.11 

 
See attached Exhibit C1 through C4. 

 
• How much did it cost to plan, implement, and maintain the division’s career path?12 
 

The law enforcement division's sworn career path has been in place for many years. It was 
recently updated in FY 2015 to reflect the need to retain and add incentive for officers to 
continue their careers with the agency. The cost associated with this plan changes yearly based 
upon the numbers of officers and current salaries. The funds needed for this career path are 
state appropriated and directly allocated by the General Assembly. Last year's FY 2018 DNR Law 
Enforcement request of $75,308.00 for step increases was not funded. 

 
• Please provide, by division, the bonuses amounts, number of employees who received each different 

amount, and reason each different amount was provided, for fiscal year 2015-16 and fiscal year 2016- 
17.13 

 
See attached Exhibit D, which includes bonuses provided and Division of State Human Resources 
information on bonuses, rewards, and recognition. See next page for brief summary 
  

10 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 1 
11 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 4 and Exhibit D 
12 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 7 
13 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 5 and Exhibit E 

Page 56 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Bonuses and Number of Employees who received each type 
 Thank you card On the Spot Other Bonus Legislative Bonus  

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 
Law Enforcement 4 2 11 0 7 12 259 0 
Executive 1 6 0 4 4 6 36 0 
Office of Support Services 3 3 3 1 5 18 63 0 
Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries 6 4 0 2 14 23 183 0 

Land, Water, and Conservation 4 4 9 9 3 29 41 0 

Marine Resources 0 0 1 2 9 19 144 0 
 
 
 

Employee Morale/Satisfaction 
• Please provide a copy of the results from the satisfaction survey and training survey the agency utilized 

several years ago, which was mentioned during the meeting.14  
 

See attached Exhibit E. 
 
• When available, please provide a copy of the results of the survey performed on employee morale 

which the Director referenced in the October 9, 2017, Subcommittee meeting.15 
 

The survey is not yet available.  Once it is available, DNR will provide a copy to the 
Subcommittee. 

 
• Does the agency allow employees any time during a typical week or month to perform research on their 

own which may help generate new ideas or improvements for agency deliverables or processes?16 
 

The agency encourages innovation and does not restrict employees from working on these 
sorts of projects. 

 
 
 

Drug Testing 
• Please provide a copy of the agency’s drug testing policies.17 
 

See attached Exhibit F. 
 
 
 
 

14 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 13 and Exhibit J 
15 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 14 
16 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 12 
17 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 6 and Exhibit F 

Page 57 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Turnover 
• Please provide, in an Excel sheet, information about unfilled positions, by division, utilizing the 

following column headings:18  
o Division; 
o Position title; 
o Funded or unfunded; 
o Date initially vacant; 
o Date(s) posted (The date the position was initially posted so applicants could apply. If the 

position has been posted multiple times, please include the start and end date for each time it 
has been posted.); and 

o Additional comments (Include any additional comments necessary to provide clarity or further 
explanation to the information in the other cells in the row.) 

 
Below are the number of vacancies in each division as of October 16, 2017.  On the next page is 
a more in-depth summary.  See attached Exhibit G for full details. 
 
 

Division (as of 10.16.17) Vacant Positions 
Office of Support Services/Executive (OSS) 36 
Land, Water and Conservation (LWC) 6 
Law Enforcement (LE) 38 
Marine Resources (MRD) 7 
Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries (WFF) 11 
Total 98 

18 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 7 and Exhibit G 

Page 58 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Division/Vacant Positions (as of 10.16.17) In Division In HR Total     
Executive 6 3 9 Land, Water and Conservation 0 6 6 
Assistant Geodetic Tech 1 0 1 Archaeologist II 0 3 3 
Associate Geodetic Technician 1 0 1 Climatologist II 0 1 1 
Attorney IV 1 0 1 Gis Analyst 0 1 1 
Dpty/Div Director-Exec Comp 1 0 1 Wildlife Biologist III 0 1 1 
Eng/Assoc Eng II 0 1 1     
Executive Assistant I 1 0 1 Marine Resources 5 2 7 
Public Information Coordinator II 0 1 1 Administrative Coordinator I 1 0 1 
Public Information Director I 1 0 1 Bldg/Grounds Spec III 1 0 1 
Risk Management & Compliance Manager I 0 1 1 GIS Manager I 0 1 1 
    Natural Resource Techn III 1 0 1 
Law Enforcement 10 28 38 Trades Specialist IV 1 0 1 
Administrative Assistant 1 0 1 Wildlife Biologist III 1 1 2 
Communications Spec II 2 4 6     
Investigator IV 0 1 1 Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries 4 7 11 
Law Enforcement Officer I 0 6 6 Administrative Assistant 1 0 1 
Law Enforcement Officer II 3 9 12 Natural Resource Tech II 0 1 1 
Law Enforcement Officer II/Pfc 0 2 2 Natural Resource Techn II 1 0 1 
Law Enforcement Officer III 0 2 2 Natural Resource Techn III 0 2 2 
Le Officer II - Pfc 0 1 1 Trades Specialist V 0 1 1 
Le Officer III 1 0 1 Vehicle Maintenance Supv 1 0 1 
Pfc - Le Officer II 2 1 3 Wildlife Biologist II 0 1 1 
Pfc- Law Enforcement Officer II 1 0 1 Wildlife Biologist III 0 1 1 
Private First Class 0 1 1 Wildlife Biologist IV 1 1 2 
Supply Specialist III 0 1 1     
        
Office of Support Services (OSS) 9 18 27     
Accountant/Fiscal Analyst III 0 1 1 Grants Administrator I 1 0 1 
Acct/Fiscal Analyst III 1 0 1 Grants Coordinator II 0 2 2 
Administrative Assistant 2 0 2 Information Systems/Business 

Analyst II 
0 1 1 

Administrative Coordinator II 1 0 1 It Consultant I 1 1 2 
Administrative Manager I 0 1 1 Procurement Specialist II 0 1 1 
Administrative Specialist II 1 7 8 Program Manager II 1 0 1 
Database Administrator II 1 0 1 Sr. IT Consultant 0 1 1 
Fiscal Technician II 0 2 2 Wildlife Biologist III 0 1 1 

 

Page 59 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



• Please provide information on whether any of the employees who are categorized as leaving for 
“personal,” “retirement,” or other reasons, also left in lieu of termination.19  

 
There were nine employees over the last three fiscal years. 

 
• Does the agency analyze turnover; reasons for leaving; and status and salary actions; by division to 

determine if status and salary actions are having an impact on retention? If so, please provide the 
information that is analyzed. If not, please describe what data is analyzed by the agency in an effort to 
keep retention high and turnover low.20 

 
No. 

 
• Please provide a copy of any forms utilized as part of the exit interview process.21 
 
 See attached Exhibit H. 
 

19 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 9 
20 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 10 
21 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 11 and Exhibit I 

Page 60 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



OFFICE OF MEDIA AND OUTREACH 
 
 
Summary 
 
The Office of Media and Outreach (OMO) is in DNR’s Executive organizational unit.  This organizational unit 
also includes the Legal Office, Office of Human Resources, Audits Manager, Legislative Liaison, and Special 
Assistant to the Director.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
Wildlife Magazine 
• Please provide the following information for each fiscal year from 2013-14 through 2017-18: Number of 

subscriptions; Total cost to provide (in print, mail, FTE salary, etc.); Total annual revenue; Revenue from 
subscriptions; Revenue from advertisements; and Revenue from other sources.22  

 
 

Year # of 
Subscriptions 
(as of July 1) 

Revenue from 
Subscriptions 

Annual Revenue Cost to Provide Revenue - Cost 

2013 36,653 $410,595.90 $415,595.90 $583,537.62 ($167,941.72) 
2014 38,111 $473,063.58 $475,376.43 $650,952.56 ($175,576.13) 
2015 36,303 $371,299.43 $372,748.46 $574,962.73 ($202,214.27) 
2016 33,188 $334,881.38 $337,212.26 $577,567.73 ($240,355.47) 
2017 30,090 $92,838.12 (Partial) $93,491.12 (partial) $171,954.51 (partial) ($78,463.39) 

 
 Revenue from advertisements 

South Carolina Wildlife (SCW)  is classified as a non-profit publication.  This classification 
reduces the costs to mail the publication to its subscribers, but it  limits the ability to 
advertise to less than 10%, or four pages, of the publication.  Between 2013-2014 and 
today, SCW has not participated in the sales of advertising within the magazine. 

 
As of October 24, 201 7, the latest subscriber count was 30,859 for the November- 
December 2017 mailing. Updates come every two to three weeks. Also,  t h e  a g e n c y  i s  
approaching a season that regularly produces subscription receipts. 

 
 
 

22 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 28 

Page 61 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Litter 
• Please explain the similarities and differences in DNR’s litter program and the Department of Parks, 

Recreation, and Tourism’s litter program(s).23 
 

The South Carolina Department of Natural Resources serves as the Chairman and information 
clearing house of the South Carolina Litter Commission.  Established in April of 2015 through 
the Take Pride in Where You Live Act, the Commission is a 12 member team created to 
collaborate on statewide litter efforts and educate the public on litter prevention and 
reduction.  The Commission meets a minimum of twice per year to discuss strategic planning, 
education and legal regulations.  Staff within the SCDNR Litter Program ensure that all 
legislative reporting is completed and submitted in a timely manner. 

 
In addition to SCDNR's administrative support to the Commission, SCDNR does maintain a one 
person litter program focused on public education and how litter effects natural resources, 
wildlife and fisheries.  This program maintains an interactive website (www.dnr.sc.gov/UP2U)  
and participates in several SCDNR outreach events. 

 
Working with SCDNR law enforcement and the SCDNR social media, the litter program has 
been successful in assisting with identifying the location and clean-up of illegal dumping sites at 
boat landings and other public lands. This will continue through education and the Tip 
411/0peration Game Theft programs. 

 
It is our understanding that the State Parks Service does not maintain a public outreach litter 
program.  They do maintain litter pick-up through the daily upkeep of trashcans and dumpsters 
throughout their parks and camping areas.  SCPRT also has signage indicating where to place 
litter throughout the parks.  Additionally, where necessary, SCPRT uses wildlife proof containers 
to reduce the spreading of litter by bears and raccoons. 

23 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 26 

Page 62 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017

http://www.dnr.sc.gov/UP2U)


OFFICE OF SUPPORT SERVICES - INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 

 
 
Summary 
 
Office of Support Services Division (OSS) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit continuously 
evaluates and improves administrative and business processes; and the efficiency and effectiveness of 
internal and external service delivery with a focus on transparency, communication, accountability and the 
integration of new technologies.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
General 
• Why do all information technology personnel not report to the agency’s information technology 

director?24 
As a distinctly large and unique SCDNR hub tasked with Marine research and monitoring work, 
Marine Resources Center staff have dealt with scientific data and the need to capture, store, 
analyze, and archive data on a daily basis since the establishment of the Marine Resources Center 
in the early 1970s. Information Technology staff located at and reporting to personnel at the 
Marine Resources Center pre-date the establishment of the position of Information Technology 
(IT) Director.  Marine Resources Center IT staff have supported the Division's specialized scientific 
computing, equipment, data acquisition, and data management needs on a daily basis for 
decades. 

 
Information Technology personnel in Charleston continue to report to the Director of Marine 
Operations as they serve as a primary support function for agency personnel located in 
Charleston as well as in outlying facilities in the coastal region.  However, Charleston-based  IT 
staff do not function independently of the agency Information Technology Director as requests 
for access, purchases, hardware and software installations, and network modifications are only 
done in coordination with and under the direct approval of the Information Technology Director 
housed in our Columbia office.  Despite local supervision, Charleston IT staff must follow all IT 
policy and procedures as set forth by the agency IT Director and CISO.  Marine Resources Division 
IT staff are assigned access to agency IT resources based on their job roles.  The agency IT 
Director has the discretion to assign such roles as necessary to ensure security of IT resources 
while allowing Charleston staff to provide necessary and valuable local IT support in Charleston. 
IT staff in Charleston are not assigned specific access roles to administer agency client-server 
databases or SCEIS and their ability to indirectly access such resources through the domain 
administrator role can be eliminated through future refining of access groups within the agency. 

24 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 14 

Page 63 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• Does the agency website have a resource members of the public can utilize to determine, for a 

particular body of water, the entity that owns it and the entity responsible for management of it, 
similar to the Department of Transportation’s Street Finder (i.e., 
http://www.scdot.org/getting/streetFinder.aspx)25 
 
Yes. There are also resources on our website that point to ownership/maintenance for pier and bank 
fishing access, boat ramps and SCDNR-managed State Lakes program. 
 
Lakes/Reservoirs Website:   http://www.dnr.sc.gov/lakes/index .html  
Pier & Bank Fishing Access: http://www.dnr. sc.gov/lakes/access .html   
Boat Ramps:     https://www2.dnr.sc.gov/ManagedLands/boatramp/boatrampsearch  
SCDNR-managed State Lakes: http://www.dnr.sc.gov/lakes/state/index .html 
 
 

Pocket Ranger Mobile Application 
• Please provide the number of users and any other analytics the agency receives from the Pocket Ranger 

vendor.26 
 

  
 
 

25 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), OEP - Question 4 
26 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 27 and Exhibit N 

Page 64 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017

http://www.scdot.org/getting/streetFinder.aspx
http://www.dnr.sc.gov/lakes/index%20.html
https://www2.dnr.sc.gov/ManagedLands/boatramp/boatrampsearch
http://www.dnr.sc.gov/lakes/state/index%20.html


Record Retention/Archive 
• Is the agency current with transferring records, including electronic ones, to the Department of 

Archives and History? If not, why?27 
  

 The last transmittal of hard copy permanent records was on 2/12/2016.  The transfer included 
the following: 

 
 (a) SCDNR Board Meeting Minutes - 01/16/1998-07/24/2013 

 (b) Heritage Trust Meeting Minutes - 02/02/1995-11/10/2011 
 (c) Heritage Trust By Laws - 01/01/1974-11/03/1994 

 (d) SCDNR Criminal Case Files - 01/01/2002-09/23/2008 
 

No electronic permanent records have been transferred since SC Department of Archives and 
History (SCDAH) officially announced the launch of SCERA (SC Electronic Records Archive) on 
March 14, 2016 which enabled SCDAH to accept permanent electronic records from state 
agencies. 
 
SCDNR is working with the SCDAH Electronic Records Archivist on preparation and transfer of 
our first permanent electronic records. We anticipate to transfer before year end. (Mid-
December 2017) 

 
• Please explain the process utilized by the agency to transfer all, if any, required documents to the 

Department of Archives?28 
 

1. Agency Division Records liaisons identify permanent records that have met the Agency 
retention based on General and Specific retention schedules. 

2. The Division liaison contacts the Records Office for validation of records retention being met 
and to obtain archival boxes and tape for preparation of transfer. 

3. Records Office assist Division with preparation of boxes and completion of the State Records 
Center Transmittal Spreadsheet that includes the type of records being transferred, date range 
and the number of boxes. 

4. The SC Records Center Transmittal Spreadsheet is emailed to SCDAH Archives Processing for 
confirmation and approval of transfer.  Once approved, archival labels are affixed to boxes for 
transfer and SCDAH schedules a pick up date and time for the records. 

 
 

27 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 44 
28 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 45 

Page 65 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



OFFICE OF SUPPORT SERVICES - FINANCE 
 
 
Summary 
 
Office of Support Services Division (OSS) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit continuously 
evaluates and improves administrative and business processes; and the efficiency and effectiveness of 
internal and external service delivery with a focus on transparency, communication, accountability and the 
integration of new technologies.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 

In General 
• Please provide the graph with information about appropriations received by the agency over the years, 

which the Director referenced during the meeting.29  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 16 and Exhibit K 

Page 66 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• Currently approximately 43% of the agency’s entire budget comes from federal grants.  With that 

background, please answer the questions below. 
 

o What is the agency’s plan to continue its programs if there is a new round of tax cuts by the 
federal government during which these grants are cut?30 

 
Federal grants are an important component of the agency's funding and are necessary to meet 
agency goals.  Federal funds are comprised of a number of funding categories, including formula 
grants and competitive grants.  All of these grant programs are dependent upon the availability of 
funds through the federal appropriations process, and some of these funding sources are 
protected in Federal law and less likely to be impacted by cuts to the domestic discretionary 
budget as a result of tax cuts.  Fortunately for SCDNR, a significant proportion of these grants are 
formula grants. 
 
Examples of formula grants include the Wildlife/Sport Fish Restoration (WSFR) funds, including 
Dingell-Johnson (related to recreational fish resource research/monitoring/stock enhancement) 
and the Pittman-Robertson Funds (related to game species) funds.  These funds are established in 
federal law and are apportioned to the states by prescribed formulas and are funded by excise 
taxes paid by the recreational fisher or hunter when they buy fishing and hunting equipment.  
Other grants include State Wildlife Grants, Endangered Species Act Grants, Boater Infrastructure 
Grant, Clean Vessel Act grants, etc. 
 
Categorical project grants, or competitive grants, come largely through agencies within the 
federal government that administer projects aimed at specific agency research needs.  These 
funding agencies solicit proposals through a Request for Proposal (RFP) process and proposals are 
then competitively judged/reviewed by experts for scientific merit and applicability to RFP. Two 
main SCDNR funding agencies are the Dept. of Interior's US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and 
Dept. of Commerce's National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). 
  
Department staff are encouraged to be entrepreneurial in terms of seeking outside funding 
support and have developed strong professional relationships with collaborators nationwide , 
invested in hiring competitive nationally recognized scientists and biologists, have access to state 
of the art technology, and have successfully competed for dwindling federal resources even  
during hard budget times.  In addition, staff have also developed contracts with NGOs, cities and 
municipalities, and others to support staff while meeting the agency's mission.  The agency plans 
to continue to encourage staff to enhance their professional reputations as leaders in the field in 
order to remain competitive for these competitively-awarded grants. 
 
o Are there critical need programs the agency currently has which are funded by federal 

grants?31 
 

Yes, a number of the most vulnerable and important programs in the department could be lost, 
including, but not limited to, the following programs: 
 

30 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 22 
31 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 22 

Page 67 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



• MARMAP - This program provides the bulk of data used to monitor oceanic fish stocks like red 
snapper, black seabass, groupers, etc., between Cape Canaveral, FL, and Cape Hatteras, NC. This data 
is critical for assessing stock abundance which is used to establish fishing regulations in federal and 
state waters. 
 

• Inshore Fish Assessment program - A larger portion of this program is funded by a federal grant 
(RecFin).  Loss of funding would jeopardize the long-term data sets for species like red drum, spotted 
sea trout, flounder and others. Loss of this data would not allow SCDNR to track population status 
and provide expert advice to inform the Legislature on fishery laws. This could result in a collapse of 
these popular, and economically valuable, fisheries. 
 

• Genetic Research used in stock assessments to identify fish stocks and population health. 
 

• Sea Turtle Monitoring and Research - This program has documented turtle population trends and 
coordinated research into sea turtle health. 
 

• Fisheries Statistics - The agency is required by state law to collect landings data to help inform the 
management of commercial fisheries. 
 

• Wildlife Habitat Management and Public Hunting Programs - Wildlife Restoration (Pittman-
Robertson) funds are the primary funding source for all habitat management and hunting programs 
on public lands. 
 

• Wildlife Research and Monitoring - Research and monitoring of wildlife is accomplished through the 
use of Wildlife Restoration and State Wildlife Grant funds. Undetected declines in these species could 
result in loss of recreational opportunity and associated economic benefits as well as increased 
regulatory restrictions. 
 

• Environmental Review - A portion of the DNR Office of Environmental Program is funded through 
Wildlife and Sport Fish Restoration funds.  Inability to review proposed environmental impacts and 
mitigation measures may result in direct habitat and species losses. 
 

• Freshwater aquatic education programs are supported with a grant through the Sport Fish 
Restoration Program. 
 

• Monitoring of endangered sturgeon in South Carolina is partially supported by funds from the U. S. 
Army Corp of Engineers. 
 

• Three out of five of the fully operational freshwater hatcheries are supported with federal funds 
through the Sport Fish Restoration Program. 
 

• Freshwater Fisheries research, monitoring and habitat enhancement is accomplished through the use 
of Sport Fish Restoration Funds and State Wildlife Grant funds. 
 

• Recreational fishing opportunities in small impoundments is provided through the State Lakes 
Program supported with Sport Fish Restoration Funds. 

 

Page 68 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



• Please provide the following percentages:32 
o Agency operations funded by fees versus the general fund; and 
o Each division’s operations funded by fees versus the general fund. 

 
FY 2016-17 Agency Funds 

Division Fees / 
Revenue 

General 
Fund Federal Mitigation / 

Pass through 
 
Support Services/Executive 
 

52.90% 39.40% 7.60% 0.00% 

 
Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries 
 

47.10% 5.00% 42.80% 5.10% 

 
Marine Resources 
 

41.80% 13.00% 45.20% 0.00% 

 
Law Enforcement 
 

27.10% 55.10% 17.80% 0.00% 

 
Land, Water, and Conservation 
 

22.10% 44.80% 27.30% 5.70% 

     
Agency Wide 38.80% 30.50% 28.90% 1.90% 

 
• Please provide a list of all of the agency programs or deliverables that are completely funded by the 

amounts charged to those who utilize the programs or deliverables.33 
This fiscal year, Licensing, Titling and Registration is completely funded by the amounts charged 
to those who utilize the deliverables. 

 
• Please provide information the agency gathered three years ago about fees, which agency 

representatives mentioned during the meeting.34 
 See attached Exhibit I. 
 
• How much has DNR collected from citations during each of the last three fiscal years?35 

According to the South Carolina Enterprise Information System (SCEIS), the fine receipts 
for SCDNR for the last three years is as follows: 
 

DNR Received from Citations 
2015 $ 336,172.74 
2016 $ 266,700.55 
2017 $ 320,237.13 

32 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 17 
33 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 18 
34 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 17 and Exhibit L 
35 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 21 

Page 69 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Credit Card Fees 
• How much has the agency spent on credit card or other banking transaction fees which resulted from 

the consumer’s choice of payment during the last three years?36 
 

Merchant Fee Expenditures 
Year Fees charged to agency 

FY 2015 $33,268.59 
FY 2016 $40,603.72 
FY 2017 $45,099.57 
TOTAL $118,971.88 

 
 

• Does the agency have a contract with a credit card vendor and credit card processing vendor or does 
the agency participate in a statewide contract for these services which all state agencies utilize?37  
 

 The agency participates in the statewide contract which is available to all state agencies. 
 

Funds for unfilled positions 
• Please provide information on how funds for unfilled positions may be utilized by the agency.38  

 
The agency may transfer funds for unfilled positions to budget lines for other operating 
expenses within the program or personal services and other operating expenses outside of the 
program. These transfers are restricted by the parameters set forth in Proviso 117.9. 

 
117.9. (GP: Transfers of Appropriations) Agencies and institutions shall be authorized to transfer 
appropriations within programs and within the agency with notification to the Executive Budget 
Office and Comptroller General. No such transfer may exceed twenty percent of the program 
budget. Upon request, details of such transfers may be provided to members of the General 
Assembly on an agency by agency basis.  Transfers of appropriations from personal service 
accounts to other operating accounts or from other operating accounts to personal service 
accounts may be restricted to any established standard level set by the State Fiscal 
Accountability Authority upon formal approval by a majority of the members of the State Fiscal 
Accountability Authority. 

 

Lease Agreements 
• Is there a common area maintenance fee in all the buildings the agency leases to other entities?39 

 
The Beardon House rent is for a flat fee that does not include a common area maintenance fee. 

 

36 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 21 
37 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 22 
38 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 8 
39 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 23 

Page 70 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



MARINE RESOURCES DIVISION 
 
Summary 
 
Marine Resources Division (MRD) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit works to sustain the 
State's living marine resources for the cultural, recreational, commercial and economic benefit of the 
state's citizens and visitors.   
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 

Finances and Fees 
• Other than the visual at the entrance of the Marine Resources Research Institute building, where else 

does the agency publicize how the agency utilizes money it receives from licenses, fees, and/or 
permits? (e.g., website, Wildlife magazine, etc.)40  
 

The agency has at various times put information on the web site and issued news releases on 
the Sport Fish and Wildlife Restoration program, especially during the year 2012 when the 
75th anniversary celebration of the program was ongoing nationwide.  See the following 
couple of examples: 

 
http://www.dm.sc.gov/wma/wildrestact.html http://www.dnr.sc.gov/news/yr2012/ janl 9/janl 9   
wfsr.html 

 
The Saltwaterfishing.sc.gov website provides annual reports of all projects that utilize saltwater 
license funds.  Use the following link for the 2017 report. 
http ://saltwaterfishing.sc. gov /reports/fy2017 .html 

 
In 2016, SCDNR's Coastal Resources blog highlighted how saltwater license funds support 
coastal fisheries. 

 
MRD staff provide annual reports following each fiscal year.  Those reports are available on 
requests. 

 
At SCDNR's coastal licensing office on Fort Johnson Road, a full size stand-up banner is 
displayed in both the commercial license office and boat titling/licensing building. 

 
An 8.5"x 11" counter display was placed at approximately 50 coastal vendors of outdoor 
equipment (i.e. tackle shops, Walmart etc.). 

 
The 8.5"x 11" counter display was also used at SCDNR Marine Division booths during five 
annual outdoor shows. 

40 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 20 

Page 71 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017

http://www.dm.sc.gov/wma/wildrestact.html
http://www.dnr.sc.gov/news/yr2012/


Contracts 
• Please provide a list of the three to five largest contracts, in dollar amount, the Marine Resources 

Division has with outside vendors and provide a copy of each of these contracts.41 
1. Contract #4400015421 - Ship Maintenance & Repair/Crane Vendor: Metal Trades 

Contract Term: March 7, 2017 - September 5, 2017 Contract Amount: $456,279.00 
 

2. Contract #4400016150 -HVAC Maintenance & Repair Services Vendor: Daikin Applied 
Contract Term: July 1, 2017 -June 30, 2022 Contract Amount: $149,900.00 
 

3. Contract #4400017173 - Maintenance on Histology Equipment Vendor: Southeast Pathology 
Instrument 
Contract Term: September 28, 2017 - September 27, 2022 Contract Amount: $73,750.00 
 

4. Contract #4400016271 - Artificial Reef Construction Vendor: Stevens Towing Company 
Contract Term: June 2, 2017 -July 31, 2017 Contract Amount: $78,000.00 
 

5. Contract #4400016120 - Purchase and Delivery of Oyster Shells Vendor: Lloyds Oyster House 
Contract Term: May 16, 2017 - July 31, 2017 Contract Amount: $44,500.00 

 
The contract documents are on the Oversight Committee’s webpage. 

 

Horseshoe Crabs 
• How many years have horseshoe crab permits for biomedical purposes been available?42 
 27 years, beginning in 1991. 
 
• How many of these permits have been obtained during each of the last three years?43 

Permits to Harvest Horseshoe Crabs for Biomedical Purposes 
Year Number of Permits 
2015 17 
2016   0 (Processing lab was closed for renovations and recertification by FDA)  
2017 18 

 
• How many horseshoe crabs is a holder of one of these permits allowed to harvest/borrow?44 

There is no limit established by the state.  Rather the number harvested is based on how many 
the bleeding facility can handle during the limited harvest season which typically runs from late 
March to early June.  Each year there is a preseason meeting where DNR representatives review 
permit conditions and Charles River Endosafe provides each supplier a seasonal quota.  DNR 
samples crabs at the bleeding facility weekly to make estimates of average size and sex of crabs 
being bleed. Each year the total number of crabs collected is provided to DNR and subsequently 
to The Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission as part of our compliance with the interstate 
management plan.  Because Charles River Endosafe is the only processor in South Carolina, these 
data are deemed by state and federal law as confidential. 

41 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 24 and Exhibit M 
42 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 29 
43 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 30 
44 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 31 

Page 72 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
• What potential negative impacts does the agency believe exist if a fee was required for these types of 

permits?45 
 

Minimal impact for a reasonable fee. 
 
• Does the agency have any information on standard industry prices for the blood those with permits 

obtain from the horseshoe crabs?46 
 

The suppliers are paid by the number of crabs delivered to the facility, not by the amount of 
blood collected. An estimated $400,000 to $500,000 is paid to the harvesters each year. We are 
not privy to the quantity of blood collected or its value. 

 

Loggerhead Turtle Nests 
• What does the agency attribute to the dip in loggerhead turtle nests in 2014?47 
 

DNR does not know the specific cause of the dramatic dip in turtle nests in 2014. However, 
monitoring of nests by DNR since the early 1980's shows that similar events also occurred in 1993 
and 2004.  While the specific cause of these events remains unknown, the overall pattern of sea 
turtle recovery remains clear in DNR's long-term data. 

 

Saltwater Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee (SRFAC) 
• Please confirm the information attached from the Secretary of State’s website is accurate in regards to 

the date this committee was initially formed and the following regarding each of its members:48 
o Name 
o Appointed by 
o Most recent appointment date 
o Date term, from most recent appointment date, ends 

 
 

SALTWATER RECREATIONAL FISHERIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
(As of October 2017) 

Name Appointee of Term, date term ends, etc. 
Mr. Skeeter Nash, Chair  Governor 2nd term expires 6/30/08  

Appointed by Gov. Hodges 3/23/00 
Appointed by Gov. Sanford 5/30/03  
Reappointed by Gov. Sanford 12/29/05 

Mr. Thomas C. Webster, Vice 
Chair 

Beaufort County  1st term expires 6/30/04  
Appointed by County Delegation 1/26/01 

Mr. John E. Tanner  Governor 1st term expires 6/30/08 
Appointed by Gov. Sanford 3/30/04 

45 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 32 
46 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 33 
47 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 34 
48 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 35 

Page 73 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Mr. Wally Lee Georgetown County  1st term expires 6/30/20  
Appointed by County Delegation 
2/20/2015 

Mr. Charles Griffith  Colleton County  2nd term expires 6/30/2012  
Appointed by Senator Grooms of Colleton 
County 12/15/2008 

Mr. Daniel E. Henderson  Jasper County  1st term expires 6/30/04  
Appointed by Rep. Pinckney, Jasper 
County Delegation 10/26/00 

Mr. Gary M. Gist  Charleston County  1st term expires 6/30/2021  
Appointed by County Delegation 
09/14/2017 

Dr. Jeffrey H. Wallen  Horry County  2nd term expires 6/30/12  
Appointed by County Delegation, 4/6/06 
and 3/19/08 
Reappointed by County Delegation 
6/20/2013- 2nd term expires 6/30/2016  

Vacant  Berkeley County  Edward J Meadows, Jr. resigned 1/12/15  
Vacant  Dorchester County  Doug Reardon resigned 11/1/2015 
Ms. Elizabeth Willis  DNR Board liaison  Appointed May 2015 

 
• Please provide the date the agency’s Marine Advisor Board was initially formed, purpose for which it 

was formed, who serves on the Board, how those members are chosen, and the length of their terms.49 
The predecessor of the Marine Advisory Committee was formed in 1972 which was shortly after 
the Marine Resources Division began operating at the SC Marine Resources Center. The 
committee was renamed the Marine Advisory Board in January 1974. Based upon meeting 
minutes from 1974, it appears the MAB had 7 members who represented various aspects of the 
seafood industry.   Executive orders reauthorized the Board in 1986 and again in 1989. The 
committee was renamed the Marine Advisory Committee in 1994. 

 
  From the 1989 executive order: 

The Advisory Boards shall work with their respective counterparts within the 
Department's organization and shall serve as liaison between the Wildlife and 
Marine Resources Commission and the representative (sic) of both the public 
at large and the business and industry interests involved. In addition, the 
advisory boards shall assist the Commission as requested in determining 
appropriate Commission policies relating to their respective areas of concern 
and to the Commission overall. 

 
Marine Advisory Committee meetings have served as public hearing venues for a number of 
challenging issues over the years.   Subcommittees have been formed to study various issues and 
report back to the full committee. Legislative proposals developed by MRD staff, or proposed by 
the general public, are typically presented to, and discussed by, the MAC. If approved, proposals 
are forwarded to the DNR Board for formal approval before being pursued as legislation. The 
MAC has examined issues related to both recreational and commercial fisheries, as well as 

49 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 36 

Page 74 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



habitat and water quality. 
 
• Please provide a list of how the functions of the SRFAC and the agency’s Marine Advisor Board may be 

duplicative.50 
 

The functions of the Marine Advisory Committee are presented above (Question 36). 
 
The activities of the Saltwater Recreational Fishery Advisory Committee (SRFAC) are specified by 
state law: 

 
SECTION 50-5-1950. Saltwater Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee established; 
composition; compensation; term. 

(A) A Saltwater Recreational Fisheries Advisory Committee is established to assist in prioritizing 
the expenditures of monies received in the special account. The committee is composed of 

(1) one member of the Board of the Department of Natural Resources to serve ex 
officio; 

(2) two at-large members appointed by the Governor; and 
(3) one member from each of the following coastal counties appointed by a majority of 

the respective legislative delegations of Beaufort, Charleston, Colleton, Georgetown, 
Horry, Jasper, Dorchester, and Berkeley Counties. 

(B) The members in subsection (A)(2) and (3) shall represent the saltwater recreational fishing  
community. 

(C) Committee members shall be paid the usual mileage, subsistence, and per diem as 
prescribed by law for members of state boards, commissions, and committees to be paid 
from revenues from the sale of stamps, licenses, prints, and related articles. 

(D) The terms of members in subsection (A)(2) and (3) are for four years and are limited to two 
consecutive terms. Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term in the 
manner of original appointment. 

 
Historically, the SRFAC's actions have been focused primarily on reviewing DNR's proposed 
budget for Saltwater License funds.  The committee has occasionally chosen to provide 
unsolicited statements to the DNR Board regarding recreational fishing issues and the Committee 
often provides observations on saltwater fishing trends and news that they observed, or were 
reported to them by saltwater anglers.  Presently, the Marine Advisory Committee is comprised 
primarily of saltwater recreational enthusiasts and there are no commercial fishing interests  

 

50 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 37 

Page 75 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



LAND, WATER, AND CONSERVATION DIVISION 
 
 
Summary 
 
Land, Water, and Conservation Division (LWC) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit develops 
and implements programs that study, manage, and conserve the state's land and water resources through 
planning, research, technical assistance, public education and the development of a comprehensive natural 
resources database.  
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
Aquatic Plant Management Council 
• Please provide the following information related to the council:51 

o Council Rules; 
o Council Regulations; and 
o List of Council Members with the date they began serving on the council and attendance at 

council meetings from that time to the present. 
 
 Council Rules 
 

See attached Exhibit J ,  By Laws of the South Carolina Aquatic Plant Management Council.  
 
 Council Regulations 
 
 SECTION 49-6-30. Aquatic Plant Management Council; membership; duties. 

There is hereby established the South Carolina Aquatic Plant Management Council, hereinafter 
referred to as the council, which shall be composed of ten members as follows: 
 
1. The council shall include one representative from each of the following agencies, to be 
appointed to the chief executive officer of each agency: 
 

a. Water Resources Division of the Department of Natural Resources; 
b. South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control; 
c. Wildlife and Freshwater Fish Division of the Department of Natural Resources; 
d. South Carolina Department of Agriculture; 
e. Coastal Division of the Department of Health and Environmental Control; 
f. South Carolina Public Service Authority; 
g. Land Resources and Conservation Districts Division of the Department of Natural 

Resources; 

51 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 1 and Exhibit A 

Page 76 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



h. South Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism; 
i. Clemson University, Department of Fertilizer and Pesticide Control. 

 
The representative of the Water Resources Division of the Department of Natural Resources 
shall serve as chairman of the council and shall be a voting member of the council. 

 
The council shall provide interagency coordination and serve as the principal advisory body to 
the department on all aspects of aquatic plant management and research.  The council shall 
establish management plans, and advise the department on research priorities. 

 
List of Council Members with the date they began serving on the council and attendance at 
council meetings from that time to the present. 

 
 

 

Page 77 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Soil and Water Conservation District 
• Please provide the form each district must complete on a monthly basis.  If there is no specific form 

related to the monthly report received by the agency, please provide one to three sample monthly 
reports which will show the type of information districts include in monthly reports.52 

 
The Monthly Report includes the activities of the DNR-Conservation Districts Program staff and 
the activities of the individual conservation districts. There is not a specific form for the 
conservation districts to submit.  The format is a narrative of the district's activities during the 
month. 

 
See attached Exhibit K, Soil and Water Conservation Districts-September 2017 Monthly Report 
Examples. 

 
• Does the agency have the ability to determine what percentage of the districts activities are related to 

the farm bill?  If so, please provide this percentage.53  
 

While each conservation district is involved in Farm Bill activities, to answer this question would 
require input from each district as there are many variables in Farm Bill activity percentage levels. 

 

Flood Insurance Policy Surcharge 
• Please provide the following information about the flood insurance policy surcharge:54 

o Who currently receives the funds; 
o Annual amount received each of the last two years; and 
o How DNR would utilize the funds if they were directed to the agency’s flood mitigation unit. 

 
After researching this issue with the Department of Revenue and the Department of Insurance, it 
appears that this surcharge is no longer being collected in South Carolina. This is a surcharge that 
is allowed by FEMA but not required. Most states that collect the surcharge fee use it to help 
support their Flood Mitigation Program and staff. 
 
If the one dollar policy fee was to be redirected to the SCDNR Flood Mitigation Program it would 
be allocated to enhance the programs efforts to relay the true level of flood risk of the citizens of 
South Carolina. The funding would be allocated on an as-needed basis to enhance the following 
programs.  First, the funding would be used to increase and enhance the outreach and education 
efforts that are part of the State Coordinating office requirements. Under the Community 
Assistance Program-State Support Services Element grant FEMA funds outreach through teaching 
of classes and audits of communities floodplain management programs.  However, funding is 
limited and results in a gap in addressing specific needs of communities. Second, the funding 
would be used to enhance the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps.  Currently, with no state 
funding the Cooperating Technical Partners (CTP) program is tied to FEMA's metrics and funding 
level. The funding would allow flexibility to address needs or deficiencies identified that FEMA 
funding does not cover. Also, this funding would allow the CTP program to identify the funding as 
cash match which increases the availability of additional funding under the current CTP grant 

52 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 3 and Exhibit D 
53 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 4 
54 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 5 

Page 78 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



structure.  Third, the funding would be used to segment the SC Flood Inundation Mapping and 
Alert system that is being developed by the Flood Mitigation program with a FEMA Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) grant. The SC Flood Inundation and Alert system is being 
created to assist the following, but not limited to local governments, citizens and law 
enforcement with understanding flood risk.  The information can be used to relay true flood risk 
for a property, planning, evacuations and rescues. The HMGP grant has only funded two sites 
within the state to develop and deploy flood inundation mapping and warning. The funding 
would be used to create the data needed to provide inundation mapping to additional sites of the 
state.  Finally, the funding would be used to cover disaster costs incurred while assisting 
communities during and following flooding events. These costs are not reimbursable under the 
Public Assistance program as they are considered increased administrative cost.  However, it is 
critical that local governments receive assistance as soon as possible to ensure they assist their 
citizens correctly and efficiently; while also staying in compliance with the requirements of the 
National Flood Insurance Program. 
 

Scenic Rivers 
• Please provide the criteria for designating a river as a scenic river.55 
 

See attached Exhibit L, Criteria for Eligibility and Classification of South Carolina State Scenic 
Rivers-October 2017. 

 
• Please list the benefits for a river being designated a scenic river.56 
 

o Increased recognition and awareness of the river and its significant attributes. 
o Partnerships for river conservation and management enabled though a local Scenic River Advisory 

Council which is established by the SC Department of Natural Resources. 
o Additional tax benefits to landowners who may elect to donate conservation easements to the 

state on lands adjacent to scenic rivers. 
o Increase level of state review of permit applications for construction (e.g. docks) within the 

waters of scenic rivers. 
 

Heritage Trust 
• Please provide the last three monthly financial statements related to the Heritage Trust.57 
 

See next page, South Caroline Heritage Trust Fund-Document Stamp Receipts & Investment 
Earning.

55 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 6 and Exhibit E 
56 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 7 
57 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 3, 2017), Question 2 and Exhibit C 

Page 79 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 80 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



  

Page 81 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



WILDLIFE AND FRESHWATER FISHERIES DIVISION 
 
 
Summary 
 
Wildlife & Freshwater Fisheries Division (WFF) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit monitors 
and protects wildlife species and inland aquatic species and their habitats throughout the state and 
provides recreational hunting and fishing opportunities to the public. 
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
Fish Kill 
• What are the methods for obtaining restitution? (e.g., lawsuit, etc.)58 

 
There is a longstanding memorandum of agreement between SCDHEC and the South Carolina 
Wildlife and Marine Resources Commission (now SCDNR) that defines the responsibilities of 
SCDHEC and SCDNR in the investigation of public water fish kills.  SCDNR is responsible "for 
investigating damages to the natural resources."  SCDHEC is responsible "for determining the 
cause."  Additionally, SCDHEC "shall initiate administrative enforcement proceedings" under their 
authority "to collect any penalty and/or damages which are arrive at and in accordance with the 
MOA." 

 
• Please provide the following information for the last five times there was a fish kill:59  

o date; 
o number of fish killed; 
o restitution sought; and 
o restitution obtained. 

 
Five Most Recent Fish Kills 

Date # Killed Restitution Sought Restitution Obtained 

August 15, 2017 707 No - responsible party not identified. None 
May 17, 2017 137 No - responsible party not identified. None 
October 14, 2016 15,302 Yes Pending 

June 25-26, 2016 40,736 Yes Yes 

March 25, 2016 1,154 No - cause identified No 
 
 

58 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 1 
59 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 2 

Page 82 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



• When restitution is obtained, where are the funds deposited?60 
Generally, funds are deposited into hatchery system accounts to offset cost or restocking or 
other public water stockings. 

 

Fish Hatcheries 
• How much is DNR requesting in the budget for Barnwell State Hatchery?61 

There is a pending request for the fiscal year 2019 budget for one FTE and $101,654 (includes 
personnel) in recurring funds to operate the Barnwell Hatchery.  Additionally, there is a 
non-recurring budget request for $2,000,000 for hatchery renovations.  A portion of these funds 
would be applied to renovations of the hatchery infrastructure at Barnwell. 

 
• What is the current demand for fish, DNR’s current capacity, and DNR’s projected capacity if Barnwell 

State Hatchery is re-opened?62 
Generally, stocking requests from regional management staff run from 10 to 12 million fish 
annually for public water stocking.  The hatchery system is at peak demand and at production 
capacity during the spring striped bass production season.  At current capacity, our hatchery 
system is still about 1 million striped bass fingerlings short of meeting management requests.  We 
rely on the USFWS hatchery system to provide up to a million striped bass fingerlings grown out 
at their facilities using striped bass fry produced by SCDNR staff.  Under ideal conditions the 
ponds at the Barnwell Hatchery could produce between 300,000 to 350,000 striped bass 
fingerlings which would reduce our reliance on our federal partners but not completely eliminate 
it. 

 
• What are the average operating costs for an individual hatchery?63 

Hatchery budgets range from about $75,000 to over $750,000 annually depending on the size of 
the facility, facility mission and staffing.  In fiscal year 2017 SCDNR expended approximately 
$2,609,389 on the five fully operational hatcheries for an average cost of $521,878. 

 
• What is the return on investment for a fish hatchery?64 

The most recent species specific economic impact information SCDNR has is from a report 
prepared by Southwick Associates in 2008 based on national survey data collected by the Census 
Bureau for the USFWS in 2006.   The Southwick report estimates the economic impact of striped 
bass ($276,529,856) and coldwater trout ($14,200, 151) fishing combined was $290,730,007.  
The striped bass and cold water trout fisheries in South Carolina are dependent on fish from 
SCDNR.  The return on investment (ROI) based solely on striped bass and cold water trout is 
approximately $111 for each dollar expended toward operating the hatchery system.  This is a 
simplified estimate of ROI which does not account other fisheries and economic benefits 
associated with hatchery operations and as a result is considered to be an underestimate of the 
ROI. 

 

60 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 3 
61 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 4 
62 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 5 
63 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 6 
64 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 7 

Page 83 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Land 
• Please provide the following information related to Wildlife Managed Areas (WMA):65 

o maintenance costs for leased land v. land owned by DNR; and            
o total costs and total revenue generated from: 

 land leased from private individuals; 
 land leased from U.S. Forest Service; and 
 land owned by DNR.  

 
The SCDNR strives to optimize access and opportunity for public outdoor recreation on Wildlife 
Management Areas across the state.  The budget for wildlife management activities is not 
segregated between owned versus leased lands, therefore, SCDNR cannot provide the 
information requested in item (a) or the subparts of item (b). WMA budgets are managed at the 
regional level and funding is allocated based on needs and how to optimize opportunity for the 
public. While the agency may begin the year with a general plan for management/maintenance 
activities, it can very easily get shifted due to unforeseen circumstances such as repairs from a 
natural disaster. It is also important to note that SCDNR is often restricted by lease agreements as 
to what activities staff can do on each of the leased properties (each one is different based on 
landowner desires). SCDNR has greater flexibility for management and public opportunities on 
DNR-owned lands. 

 
As to item (b), all of the sub-items generate revenue from WMA permit sales, however, SCDNR 
cannot allocate an amount to each subpart. When a constituent purchases a WMA permit, the 
permit allows that person to hunt on any WMA across the state, whether owned or leased land. 
The WMA permit sales generate approximately $1.5-1.8 million per year with approximately 87% 
of this going directly to lease payments. 

 
SCDNR generates timber revenue on SCDNR-owned properties from harvests associated with 
habitat management activities. This revenue changes from year to year based on harvest needs 
and salvage operations due to natural disasters. The 5-year average for timber revenue is 
approximately $1.2 million per year. 

 
• Please provide the total amount spent per year on road maintenance in WMAs (mowing, re-topping 

with gravel, etc.).66 
 

Road maintenance is but one, albeit important, task associated with WMA stewardship and 
management. Road maintenance is not budgeted or tracked as a line item in Wildlife Section 
grant or project budgets.  During fiscal year 2017, $282,076 was expended solely for materials 
(gravel and sand) related to road maintenance and improvement. This may change from year to 
year based on needs and available funding.  All personnel and equipment costs incurred for road 
and trail maintenance and repair are in addition to the amount listed above. In fiscal year 2017, 
staff mowed 768 miles of roads, graded 627 miles, re-topped 54 miles with gravel and 
maintained 513 miles of trails. 

 

65 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 8 
66 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 9 

Page 84 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Call-In Programs 
• Please outline the agency’s timeline for the call-in program staggered implementation, review/revisions 

to the program, and agency request for authority, via regulation and/or statute.67 
 

SCDNR utilized the recent 2017 bear season as a pilot program for electronic reporting of 
harvested game. State law already requires all harvested bears to be reported to the agency.  The 
agency provided an opportunity for hunters to report harvested bears via phone or a web-based 
application. Based on our initial evaluations, this was successful and could easily be expanded to 
other species. 

 
The agency also developed a web-based reporting system for deer hunters who utilized the 
temporary (printable) deer tags until their permanent tags were received. Again, the agency 
deemed this successful and capable for expansion. 

 
At this time, SCDNR has identified a feasible method for requiring electronic check-in of big game 
species. SCDNR however does not have the authority to require check-in for deer and turkey. 
Legislative approval would be required to fully implement this change. 

 
The potential fix would be for the Legislature to provide authority to the Department to prescribe 
requirements for the tagging and reporting of all big game species. 

 

Dike Repair and Maintenance 
• Please provide examples, if any, of additional damage and repair costs incurred as a result of the 

classification of dike repairs as capital improvement projects.68 
 

The best example of this was Springfield Cut at Bear Island WMA. Damage occurred during 
Hurricane Matthew in October 2016.  Obtaining necessary approvals delayed the project by 4 
months.  During this time, the breach increased by 30 feet thereby costing the agency an 
additional $55,500. 

 
• Please provide examples of work that occurs at other agencies, and is exempt from the capital 

improvement project classification, which the agency believes is comparable to dike repairs.69 
 

Section  11-35-710 specifically provides exemptions for SCDOT and SCOPS from certain 
purchasing procedures for "the construction, maintenance, and repair of bridges, highways, and 
roads; vehicle and road equipment maintenance and repair; and other emergency-type parts or 
equipment utilized by the Department of Transportation or the Department of Public Safety..." 
SCDNR believes that dike repair projects are substantially similar in scope to road repair projects 
and typically involve less public funds than road repair projects. 

 
DHEC recently received a similar exemption from the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFAA) 
for dam safety issues for a five-year period, at the meeting held on May 2, 2017. 

 

67 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 10 
68 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 11 
69 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 12 

Page 85 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Permits 
• Please provide a list of permits that are issued through the Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division.70 
 

Scientific Permits (bird banding, migratory bird, 
nongame, game) 

Special use 

Migratory bird depredation Lottery hunts 
Live hog removal Fox/coyote enclosure permit 
Hog hunting enclosure Shooting preserve license 
Canada goose depredation Rabbit enclosure 
Falconry Furbearer depredation permits 
Hunt permits for party bear hunts Predator management permits 
Commercial use of SCDNR properties Alligator depredation permits 
Antlerless deer quota program permit Temporary exhibition and transportation 
Deer depredation Importation/possession 
Urban deer control (sharpshooting) Private land alligator permits 
Wild turkey control (airports) Aquaculture permits 
Bird dog training area license Non-indigenous  species permits (fisheries) 
Fox, bird dog, rabbit, retriever and squirrel field trial Scientific collection permits (fisheries) 
Raccoon field trial permit Grass carp transport permits 
Pet/backyard deer Public water stocking permits 
Captive black bear Freshwater mussel collection/possession permits. 

 

Outside Surveys 
• How often does the agency employ an outside entity to perform surveys (e.g. survey customer 

satisfaction of license holders, etc.)?71 
The agency has not contracted with an outside vendor for any surveys in recent years. This was a 
contract with Responsive' Management at one time; however, since this contract expired, we 
have relied on internally produced surveys and utilized Survey Monkey as one mechanism for 
such. 

 
o Is the contract just between the entity and the agency or does the entity have a statewide 

contract?72 
 The prior contract was between DNR and the entity. It was not a statewide contract. 
 

o If it is not a statewide contract, has the agency inquired with state procurement about whether 
other state agencies contract for surveys and if there could be any cost savings by having a 
statewide contract?73 

DNR has not spoken with any other state agencies about the need for such surveying 
contracts. The company we used in the past specialized in natural resource-related 
surveys and has specialized experience in such. 

 

70 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 17, 2017), Question 13 
71 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 15 
72 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 15 
73 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 15 

Page 86 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS 
 
 
Summary 
 
Under the Special Assistant to the Director are two divisions, (1) Office of Environmental Programs; and 
(2) Engineering and Boating Access.  Agency representatives provided the Subcommittee information 
about these divisions during the November 6, 2017 Subcommittee meeting.  Additional information 
about these divisions is available in the Subcommittee’s November 6, 2017 meeting packet and on the 
Committee’s webpage.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
Federal Energy Regulation Commission (FERC) 
• Please explain the difference in a FERC lake and an Army Corps of Engineers lake, including any 

differences in which entities are responsible for which activities.74 
 

The FERC lakes are non-federal hydroelectric-power projects that are licensed and regulated by 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) under the Federal Power Act (FPA). Most 
FERC-regulated lakes are owned and managed by private utility companies, and sometimes by 
state or local-government owned utilities, such as the SC Public Service Authority (Santee 
Cooper).  The FERC issues licenses for 30 to 50-year terms to operate and manage hydroelectric 
projects, and the FERC licensing process requires, and provides, substantial public input to 
specifying conditions for the licenses. In addition, licenses usually specify the utility/licensee to 
have regularly scheduled consultations with state and federal agencies to periodically review and 
address natural resource and environmental management issues throughout the license term. 
The FERC-regulated lakes in South Carolina include Lakes Jocassee, Keowee, Tugaloo, Wylie, 
Fishing Creek, Wateree, Parr, Monticello, Greenwood, Murray, Marion, Moultrie, and 15 other 
projects with smaller reservoirs. 

 
The US Army Corps of Engineer (USACE) lakes are established by Congress in federal law and 
usually for multiple purposes that may include flood control, navigation, power production, 
recreation, and water supply. The USACE acts as both the regulator and operator/manager of 
their lake projects, and there is no license term. Although less regulatory and resource interaction 
is mandated than it is with FERC regulated lakes, the USACE lake managers coordinate often with 
SCDNR for fisheries management of these reservoirs, drought management through Drought 
Contingency Planning and, most recently, on nuisance aquatic plant management.  The USACE 
lakes in South Carolina include Lakes Thurmond, Russell, and Hartwell located on the Savannah 
River. 

  

74 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), OEP - Question 3 

Page 87 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

Deliverables 
• In regards to Deliverable Item #24, perform environmental review and assist with mitigation for loss of 

natural resources, please state the number of regulatory agencies served each of the last three fiscal 
years.75 

 
The agency served six regulatory agencies: US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), Department of 
Health and Environmental Control (DHEC), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), and the U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 

 
• Please provide a list of example activities for which permit applications are reviewed (e.g., mines, 

residential/commercial development, beach renourishment).76 
 

The type of activities for which permit applications would be reviewed are predominantly those 
impacting waters of the United States (WOTUS) requiring potentially 401 water quality 
certifications, 404 fill to WOTUS, state/federal navigable waters, coastal zone consistency, and 
critical area permits.  However, we also review mining permits and FERC-regulated natural gas 
pipelines and hydroelectric projects.  For those impacting WOTUS, these could be a variety of 
impact types for new, or adaptations to existing, of the following:  docks, fishing piers, boat 
ramps, marina, bulkheads/revetments,  maintenance  dredging, stream/wetland 
restoration/enhancements,  land based mining and instream mining,  recreational 
impoundments, greentree reservoirs, waterfowl  impoundments,  landfills, utility lines 
(sewage/water/gas/power), road/highways, railways, bridges, airports, residential/commercial  
development, golf courses, water intakes/discharges, sewage treatment/wastewater  facilities, 
groins, jetties,  beach re- nourishment, ports, artificial reefs, beach access, and sand scraping. 

 
  

75 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), OEP - Question 1 
76 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), OEP - Question 2 

Page 88 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



LAW ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 
 
 
Summary 
 
Law Enforcement Division (LE) is one of the agency’s organizational units.  This unit conserves and protects 
the state's natural resources for social, economic, recreational and commercial benefit while providing 
maximum human utilization through: (1) the development of public support through outreach, education 
and safety programs; (2) the preservation of the peace and protection of human lives and property; and  
(3) the enforcement of the state's criminal laws through the detection, apprehension, and prosecution of 
persons who violate those laws.   
 
 
Responses to Subcommittee’s Follow-Up Questions 
 
The responses below were provided by the agency in their letters to the Subcommittee. 
 
Employees 
• Please provide the most recent information you have on starting salaries for wildlife law enforcement 

officers in other states, along with the date it is accurate as of, and source of the information.77 
 

Information obtained from Colonel Henderson with Georgia DNR from a 2015 salary study 
showed that SCDNR was ranked 45th out of 50 states in starting salary for wildlife law 
enforcement officers.  The highest starting salary was $55,080.00 and lowest was $28,825.00. 
The national average starting salary from this data was $40,875.85.  The list is attached as 
Exhibit M . 

  

77 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 3 and Exhibit C 

Page 89 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• Please provide the following information for each law enforcement officer rank:78 

o Number of individuals currently employed; and 
o Average number of years with DNR. 

 
240 Sworn FTEs in the Law Enforcement Division 
 

Competitive Positions Supervisory Ranks 
Rank Years of Service Average # of FTEs 

Colonel - Deputy 
Director  

24 years 1 

Major 27 years 3 
Captain 25 years 9 
Lieutenant 21 years 12 
First Sgt 15 years 31 

Non-Competitive Positions Non-Supervisory Ranks 
Rank Years of Service Average # of FTEs 

Staff Sgt LE III 17 years 8 
Sgt LE II 21 years 31 
L/Corporal 9.5 years 56 
Private First Class 3.5 years 46 
Conservation Officer 1.5 years 32 
Communications 
Manager 

18 years 1 

Aircraft Pilot 10 years 
2 years 

2 

DNR Investigator III 11 years 5 
DNR Investigator IV 23 years 3 

 
 

• Please provide the number of game wardens that have voluntarily separated since January 2017.79 
 

Fifteen game wardens have voluntarily separated since January 2017.  These separations were 
due to (5) retirements, (7) accepting positions with other agencies, and (3) personal reasons. 

 
• Does the division utilize a personnel allocation model to determine the number of officers needed in 

each region?80 
o If so, does the agency currently have the number of officers needed in each region? 
o If not, how many additional officers are needed in each region? 

 
Currently the law enforcement division has an internal process used to determine field officer 
assignments. This is determined through the use of several factors such as hunting/fishing 
activity, recreational boating activity, and geography of the area. 

78 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 2 
79 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 3 
80 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 4 

Page 90 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Training and Equipment 
• On average, of the individuals the agency sends to the Criminal Justice Academy for basic training, what 

percentage graduate on their first try?81 
Since 2013, 97% of officers have passed on the first attempt. Out of 92 officers sent through the 
Academy, only three have recycled (one recycled due to illness, one recycled due to failing the 
defense tactics practical, and one recycled due to failing the driving practical); All three officers 
who recycled successfully completed the Academy 

 
• Please provide the cost to train and outfit a new hire in the Law Enforcement Division.82 

To fully equip a newly hired officer to include vehicle fully rigged, standard issue uniforms and 
equipment, and specialty issued equipment is approximately $121,869.00 using current costs for 
equipment. This does not include costs for a boat which averages $19,750.00 or an ATV with 
trailer which averages $8,320.00. 

 
The training costs, not including their time at the SC Criminal Justice Academy, are as follows: one 
week of pre-academy training, four weeks of Wildlife Basic Training Academy, and four weeks of 
Marine Law Enforcement Training Academy per class is approximately $12,756.00.  Exact costs 
per student depend on the total number of students per class. 

 
• Is there certain equipment every new officer at the agency requires?83 

o Does the agency have a replacement plan for this type of equipment? 
o Does the agency have dedicated line items in the budget to cover the costs of this equipment? 
Yes, based on the officer's geographical area and specific mission, standard and specialized 
equipment is required.  Supervisors ensure that equipment needs are justified and properly 
documented.  The following items are examples of standard issue equipment:  vehicle, boat, 
mobile radio, portable radio (WT), uniforms and accessories, hand gun, shotgun, ammunition, 
badges, blue light, body armor, blood borne pathogen kit, binoculars, fire extinguisher, first aid 
kit, personal floatation device, cell phone, gas card, summons book, warning book, summons 
book cover, law book, flashlight vehicle, flashlight belt, flashlight gun mounted, GPS unit, 
protective gloves, evidence kits, compass, camera, rain gear, hip waders, catch pole, report 
holder, tape recorder, waterfowl field identification guide, leatherman tool, gear bag, snake 
boots, night vision goggles, range finder, float or survival suit, eye protection, and evidence 
cooler. 

  
Equipment replacement is based on an annual assessment to be completed by the supervisor 
utilizing information gathered from the inspection of the officer's equipment.  This assessment 
includes:  1) the age, serviceability, and basic condition of the equipment; 2) if its reasonably 
practical to repair the equipment; 3) the officer's continued status in a particular geographic area 
and/or specific job tasks; 4) and an evaluation as to whether the design or construction of the 
equipment is significantly improved so as to allow a substantial benefit to the department in 
terms of job efficiency and effectiveness, or when its use impacts the safety of the officer. 

 
The only equipment which has a dedicated line item in the law enforcement division's budget is 
vehicles. 

81 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 1 
82 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 2 
83 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 8 

Page 91 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• During the public input meeting, it was mentioned the State Law Enforcement Division (SLED) and 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR) share communications equipment.  Please explain what is 
shared, what prompted the idea of entering an arrangement to do this, and how the arrangement 
works?  Also, has there been consideration of setting up a similar arrangement with the Department of 
Public Safety?84 

SLED and DNR do not routinely share communication equipment unless there is a short- term 
need identified, such as a repair or special assignment.  SLED and DNR do have a shared radio 
frequency and camera IP network. DNR shares some of these resources to get better coverage 
for less money by not duplicating equipment. DNR, SLED and DPS assist each other when 
requested for programming, firmware updates and radio tuning.  SLED, DPS, DNR and many other 
state agencies all share radio frequencies for interoperability. DNR and SLED share the VHF radio 
system for interoperability for special events.  DNR and SLED both have radio dispatch consoles 
that are capable of communicating on each other's radio system both VHF and Palmetto 800 if 
needed.  In addition, SLED and DNR have DPS 800, mutual aid talk groups programmed into their 
consoles that allows most state and local agencies to communicate. 

 

Electronic tickets, records management, and mobile data information systems 
• Which other states utilize e-ticketing with wildlife law enforcement officers?85 

Currently the following wildlife agencies are using an e-ticket style submission system: Georgia, 
Maryland, Florida, Wisconsin, Alaska, Alabama, Delaware, Utah, Minnesota, North Carolina, 
Oregon, and Montana. 

 
• In regards to the agency’s internal change recommendation #19, does the agency have a timeline for 

researching the information the agency believes is necessary and making a decision on implementation 
of electronic records management system, E-Citation system, and mobile data information systems for 
patrol officers?86 

Currently the agency is projecting FY 2019-2020 for implementation. 
 

• What is the estimated total cost savings of e-tickets?  Please include a breakdown of the approximate 
amount of employee time spent manual entering data that would no longer be required, etc.87 

Potential savings of electronic entry of summons and warnings for records staff is approximately 
$3,508.00 monthly and $42,096.00 annually.  Two administrative assistants monthly spend 
approximately 224 hours combined entering summons and warnings manually at a cost of 
approximately $15.66 per hour. 

 
 Approximate costs for implementing an e-ticket system are as follows for 250 officers: 
 
 Hardware:   $375,000.00 Tablets + $125,000.00 Printers = $500,000.00 
 

Software upgrade/replacement for RMS, CAD, Mobile CAD, Mapping, Mobile Mapping, Auto 
Vehicle Location, AVL Playback, Mobile Records, eCitation, and servers to incorporate data 
electronically enter into a violations (points) database is approximately $900,000.00. 

84 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 9 
85 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 38 
86 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 30 
87 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 39 

Page 92 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
• What information could be accessible in the field that is not currently accessible and how could this 

information be utilized?88 
 

Equipping the field officers with mobile data equipment would allow for access to the DNR 
violation history of persons encountered in the field.  This would also allow for wanted checks 
for persons encountered checking equipment for valid licensing, registration, and to see if the 
equipment is reported stolen. 

 
• What information and analysis would be possible in the office, that is not currently possible, and how 

would this analysis improve the deliverables the agency provides the public?89 
 

Through the use of a records management program it will allow for statistical data used in crime 
mapping to allow for gathering information regarding where and when violations are being 
located, and documented.  Calls for service could be better tracked and compared to 
enforcement data for patrol planning and man power assessments for future planning and 
budgeting for equipment and personnel throughout the state. 

 
• Which of the agency’s performance measures may be improved through use of E-ticketing and how 

much could it possibly improve?90 
 

E-ticketing is just one finger on the hand of electronic records management. By upgrading and 
implementing a new records management system, which allows for electronic reporting as a 
whole, will improve performance measures.  By implementing an electronic records management 
system, it would allow for electronic incident reporting, accident reporting, evidence storage, 
evidence tracking, internal violations database, and case management. 

 
• When does the agency anticipate it will be 100% on the E-Citation system?91 

 
As of November 13, 2017, the agency was informed by the SCDMV E-Citation project manager 
that the system is not fully functional due to issues with dissemination of un- adjudicated tickets 
to the appropriate magistrate's offices. The project manager has projected the system to be 
functional by December 2017.  The agency is still determining an appropriate system for the DNR 
summons and intends to begin the process of budgeting and solicitation for a system in FY 2019-
2020. 

  

88 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 40 
89 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 41 
90 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (October 27, 2017), Question 42 
91 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 31 

Page 93 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Boater Education 
• In the Program Evaluation Report, the agency states the General Assembly can help avoid boating 

accidents and deaths by requiring in law the successful completion of a boating safety class as a 
prerequisite to operating a motorized vessel or device in SC waters.  What is currently required to 
operate a motorized vessel or device in SC waters?92 

Per S.C. Code Ann. Sec. 50-21-870(B)(9)(a) operators under age 16 operating without adult 
supervision of watercraft powered by a 15 HP motor are the only vessel operators required to 
successfully complete a boater safety class. Operators of motorized watercraft 16 years of age or 
older are not required to successfully complete a boater safety class to operate a motorized 
watercraft or device in SC waters. 

 
• In conducting investigations of boating accidents and fatalities, what are some of the most common 

causes the agency has found?93 
As shown in the 2017 Law Enforcement Investigations and Education Statistics Report the 
following are some of the most common causes the agency has found: 

a. fail to maintain proper lookout; 
b. operator inattention; 
c. excessive speed; 
d. operator  inexperience; 
e. fault of machinery; 
f. alcohol use; and 
g. careless/reckless operation. 

 
• Has the agency previously requested enactment of a law that requires the successful completion of a 

boating safety class as a prerequisite to operating a motorized vessel or device in SC waters?  If so, 
what were the concerns expressed, if any?94 

The agency has discussed this with members of the General Assembly but no legislation was 
introduced as of this year. 

 
• Which other states, if any, require the successful completion of a boating safety class, or some type of 

license, as a prerequisite to operating a motorized vessel or device in state waters?  Is the agency 
aware of any data on how these requirements have impacted the number of boating accidents or 
fatalities?95 

According to data received from the National Association of State Boating Law Administrators the 
following states have a mandatory boater safety course requirement (NASBLA):  These states 
include:  Alabama, Arkansas, California, Connecticut, District of Columbia, Delaware , Florida, 
Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevada, 
New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North  Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, 
Pennsylvania , Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas, Vermont, Virginia, Washington , West Virginia , 
and Wisconsin. 

 

92 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 10 
93 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 11 
94 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 12 
95 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 13 

Page 94 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Performance 
• Does each law enforcement region have activity or other monthly goals?  If so, are they the same for 

each region and what are they?96 
 

Yes. All four law enforcement regions have monthly goals for activity, but each of the four regions 
are inherently different. For example, the upstate region may have goals associated with 
enforcing trout limits or bear season while the coastal region may have goals for enforcing 
trawling season or shellfish season. Even within regions, activity can vary from county to county 
depending on factors like water and abundance of rural land for hunting. Although each region's 
specific goals may vary, some of the basic activity may include: public contacts, boating hours, 
boats inspected, night patrol hours, public presentations, permits issued, and Joint Enforcement 
patrol hours. 

 
• What information is tracked in an officer’s activity book?97 

 
The following data is tracked in an officer's monthly activity book:  date; day; mileage; cases 
written; cases assisted; warnings written; boating hrs.; boats inspected; hunters checked; 
fishermen checked; JEA hrs.; assisting hrs.; night patrol hrs.; search & rescue hrs.; permits  issued; 
homeland security hrs.; nuisance wildlife calls; litter patrol hrs.; heritage trust hrs.; public 
presentations; cases cleared court; hunting accident hrs.; boating accident hrs.; fines collected; 
other permits issued; enforcement action reports; courtesy boat inspections; incident/accident 
reports; warrants/suspensions  cleared; and daily activity comments. 

 
• For each of the agency performance measures listed below, which are associated with Strategy 2.2 or 

Objective 2.3.1, please provide other potential target values that may be more easily measured and/or 
more directly align with the actual results currently measured by the agency.98 

Strategy 2.2 
o Document natural resource, boating, and criminal violations; 

100 % of violations detected documented through written summons or warning. 
o Maintain leadership role in search and rescue missions, and disaster response; and 

Respond to 100 % of requests for assistance during search & rescue or disaster response 
events. 

o Continue internal efforts and partnerships with federal, state, and local partners conducting 
missions related to Homeland Security. 

Respond to 100 % of requests for assistance from our federal, state, and local partners 
for assistance on Homeland Security missions. 

 
Objective 2.3.1  
o Enforce inland fish and game laws in all 46 counties within SC; and 

Document 100% of violations detected through written summons or warnings. 
o Saltwater recreational and commercial fishing enforcement of over 3,000 miles of coastal 

waters to prevent illegal harvest of marine species. 
Document 100% of violations detected through written summons, warnings, or 
enforcement action reports. 

96 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 5 
97 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 6 
98 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 17 

Page 95 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Resource Allocation 
• Agency Objective 2.3.1 relates to enforcement of the state’s hunting, fishing, and boating laws.  Since 

the agency spends over 20% of its budget to accomplish this objective, please explain some of the 
major related costs, other than personnel.99  
 

The Law Enforcement Division incurs many diverse expenses for the enforcement of the state's 
hunting, fishing, and boating laws. Operational costs vary from month to month for equipment 
repairs (boats, motors & vehicles), standard facility expenses (electricity, gas, and maintenance), 
insurance, gas (vehicle, boat & ATV), communication costs (radio towers, cell phones and 
dispatch) and lastly, the Bank of America Procurement monthly bill. 

 
• The agency budgeted approximately $1.2 million more to Objective 2.3.1 this year than it did last year, 

with fewer personnel.  What has necessitated the increased spending?100 
 

The request for increase budget spending relates to the Supplemental funds that were 
appropriated for Outreach and upgrades to our Law Enforcement Communications Center, and 
increase in the Regional WREC/County Game and Fish requested funds for needed equipment, as 
well as a projected increase in our federal boating grant.  It was also necessary to request 
operational budget increases in Earmarked (3000) Law Enforcement funds to offset projected 
financial needs for the Fiscal year.  Note that the Agency does not Budget to Objectives and Law 
Enforcement Staff are fluid in relation to Objectives. 

 
• What percentage of the fines and fees from DNR issued citations go back to DNR?101 

 
According to information received from Court Administration, SCDNR receives 100% of most fines 
imposed by SCDNR.  The exceptions are S.C. Code Ann. Sec. 50-2 1-114, for which SCDNR receives 
75% of the fine, and the other 25% is remitted to the county.  For other fines under Title 50, 
Chapter 21, 75% of the fine is remitted to SCDNR and 25% is remitted to county.  Also, under S.C. 
Code Ann. Sec.  50-1-85 Criminal Negligent use of Fire Arms I Archery 
Tackle, 100% of that fine is deposited to the SC Victim's Compensation Fund. 

  

99 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 18 
100 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 19 
101 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 20 

Page 96 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Emergencies/Natural Disasters 
• Please provide a list of the general type of services the agency has provided during state emergencies 

that occurred in the last three years?102 
 

In the last three years, DNR officers have provided the following services during emergency 
events: 
 
Hurricane & Flood Response (2015-2017) -DNR provided manpower for security and 
search/rescue operations as a partner in the state emergency plan. Assets included vessels, 4x4 
vehicles and ATVs which were utilized pre/post storm where warranted.  Rescues were facilitated 
in both urban and rural areas, however security missions were conducted more heavily post-
storm. In addition, aviation assets were utilized pre/post storm for damage assessment and 
during river sweep operations along the cost. In addition, DNR supported the SCHP to assist in 
facilitating lane reversals. 
 
As a partner in the states Inclement Weather Plan (ice and snow) in 2015-2017 -DNR provided 
assistance to SCHP during inclement weather operations throughout the state. Officers are 
deployed with their 4x4 vehicles to "pre-identified" SCHP Troops. Officers are to ride the 
interstate to assist motorists, and assist with traffic, as DNR vehicles have better maneuverability. 

 
 

• Agency Objective 2.2.2 relates to the agency responding during statewide disasters.  Please provide 
examples of rescues which require the National Guard because the agency is unable to perform the 
rescue due to lack of necessary equipment or specific training for personnel?103  

o If the agency had this type of equipment, would the equipment generally be useful during 
statewide emergencies, or would it make the agency more effective or efficient in providing its 
other deliverables? 

 
DNR law enforcement has always been able to accomplish its mission during statewide 
emergencies with the SCDNR issued equipment that the officers are assigned. 

 

Internal Affairs 
• What is the internal affairs/investigation policy?104 

 
See SCDNR Directive 321 attached as Exhibit N. 

 
• When is a matter referred to SLED as opposed to being investigated in-house?105 
 

A matter is referred to SLED when it is determined the matter is criminal, or during an in-house 
investigation probable cause is developed to a level that would support a criminal charge. 

 

102 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 23 
103 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 24 
104 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 25 and Exhibit A 
105 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 26 

Page 97 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Laws, Reports, and Testimony in Civil Litigation 
• Please provide case law which addresses the “open fields doctrine” and what is required for a DNR 

officer to enter private property.106 
 

Hester v. United States, 265 U.S. 57, 44 S.Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 (1924) and U.S. v. 
Oliver, 466 U.S. 170 (1984) are the two United States Supreme Court cases which first held that 
the Fourth Amendment did not extend to open fields, and clarified the open fields doctrine. 

  
Also, US v. Vankesteren, 553 F.3d 286, 291 (4th Cir.2009), is a Fourth Circuit case involving the 
Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fisheries which addresses the Fourth Amendment and 
open fields. These cases, along with S.C. Code Ann. Sec. 50-1-10 which states that "all wild birds, 
wild game, and fish, except fish in strictly private ponds and lakes and lakes entirely segregated 
from other waters or held and grown in bonafide aquaculture operations are the property of the 
State" and S.C. Code Ann. Sec. 50-3-420 which states "neither any officer of the Lake Wylie 
Marine Commission nor any enforcement officer or deputy enforcement officer of the 
Department of Natural Resources is subject to criminal prosecution when acting in his official 
capacity within his territorial jurisdiction  for. ..(2) entering into private property, whether or not 
posted against trespassing .. ." give the SCDNR officers authority to enter private property. 

 
• Are there any investigative reports the agency prepares which are available for purchase by private 

companies?  If so, please provide the following107 
o Amount DNR charges a private entity for each type of report; and 
o Cost to DNR to create each type of report. 

 
No, other than fees allowed pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). 

 
• Are DNR personnel, including, but not limited to officers and biologists, ever called to testify as a 

witness in civil litigation?108 
o If so, are there statutes which discuss the rates the personnel may charge or is that handled 

through DNR’s regulations?   
 

Yes. The allowance for fees for testimony are set out in the South Carolina Rules of Civil 
Procedure (SCRCP) Rule 30(b) which allows a witness attending a deposition in a civil case to 
receive $25.00 plus mileage. 

 
  

106 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 14 
107 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 15 
108 Letter from DNR to Oversight Subcommittee (November 22, 2017), LE - Question 16 

Page 98 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

EXHIBIT A - HIRING PROCEDURE 
 

DNR Law Enforcement Division Directive D 347 
 
 

Page 99 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Page 100 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

 
 
 

Page 101 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 102 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 103 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT B - PROMOTIONAL PLAN 
 

DNR Law Enforcement Division Directive D 348 
 
 

Page 104 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Page 105 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 106 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT C1 - LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER CAREER 
PATH 

 
 

Page 107 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Page 108 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Page 109 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 

Page 110 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT C2 - MARINE RESOURCES DIVISION PAY 
PLAN 

 

Page 111 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

 

 
 

Page 112 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT C3 - WILDLIFE AND FRESHWATER 
FISHERIES PAY PLAN 

 

Page 113 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 114 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT C4 - BOAT TITLING AND REGISTRATION 
CLERKS CAREER PATH 

Page 115 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 116 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 

Page 117 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 118 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

Page 119 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 

Page 120 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT D - BONUSES 

Page 121 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 122 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 123 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 124 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 125 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 126 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 127 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 128 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 129 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 130 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 131 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT E - SATISFACTION SURVEY RESULTS (FEB. 1, 
2006) 

Page 132 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 133 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 134 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 135 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 136 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 137 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 138 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 139 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 140 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 141 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 142 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 143 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 144 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 145 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 146 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 147 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 148 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 149 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 150 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 151 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 152 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 153 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 154 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 155 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 156 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 157 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 158 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 159 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 160 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 161 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 162 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 163 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 164 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 165 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 166 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 167 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 168 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 169 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 170 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 171 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 172 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 173 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 174 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 175 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 176 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 177 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 178 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 179 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 180 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 181 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 182 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 183 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 184 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 185 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 186 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 187 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 188 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 189 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 190 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 191 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 192 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 193 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 194 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 195 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 196 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 197 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 198 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 199 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 200 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 201 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 202 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 203 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 204 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 205 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 206 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 207 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 208 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 209 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 210 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 211 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 212 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 213 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 214 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 215 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 216 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 217 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 218 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 219 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 220 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 221 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 222 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 223 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 224 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 225 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 226 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 227 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 228 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 229 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 230 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 231 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 232 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 233 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 234 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 235 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 236 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 237 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 238 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 239 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 240 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 241 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 242 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 243 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 244 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 245 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 246 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 247 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 248 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 249 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 250 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 251 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT F - DRUG TESTING POLICIES 

Page 252 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 253 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 254 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 255 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 256 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 257 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 258 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 259 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 260 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT G - VACANT POSITIONS 

Page 261 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 262 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 263 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 264 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT H - EXIT INTERVIEW FORMS 

Page 265 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 266 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT I -  FEE COMPARISON ACROSS STATES 

Page 267 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 268 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 269 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 270 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 271 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 272 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 273 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 274 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 275 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 276 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 277 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 278 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 279 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 280 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 281 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 282 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 283 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 284 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 285 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 286 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 287 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 288 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 289 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 290 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 291 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT J - AQUATIC PLANT MANAGEMENT 
COUNCIL BY LAWS 

Page 292 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Exhibit A 

BY-LAWS 

OF THE 

SOUTH CAROLINA 
AQUATIC PLANT MANAGEMENT COUNCIL 

SECTION I 

Name 

The name of this Council shall be the South Carolina Aquatic Plant Management 
Council. The Council membership and Chairperson shall be as enumerated in Section 49-6-30, 
S.C. Code of Laws (1976, as amended). Each member agency may designate an alternate who 
may vote only in the absence of the member. 

SECTION II 

Principal Office 

The principal office of the Council shall be the South Carolina Department of Natural 
Resources at Rembert C. Dennis Building, 1000 Assembly Street, Columbia, SC 2920 l. 

SECTION III 

Meetings 

(a) Quorum. A majority of at least six (6) of the members of this Council , when present at 
any meeting, shall constitute a quorum, and in case there are less than this number, the presiding 
officer may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is present. 

(b) Order of business. The order of business at all meeting shall be as follows: 

I. Call to order and introduction 

2. Review of minutes of previous meeting 

3. Committee reports 

4. Special items for discussion 

5. Unfinished business 

6. New business 

Page I 1 

Page 293 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Exhibit A 

7. Adjournment 

The order of business may be altered or suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of 
the members present. The usual parliamentary rules as laid down in Robert's Rules of Order shall 
govern, when not in conflict with these by-laws. 

(c) Council meetings may be called at any time by the Council Chairperson and must be 
called at any time by the Chairperson on the written request of a majority of the Council 
members. Five (5) day notice of any Council meeting must be provided to the Council members. 

(d) All Council meetings shall be advertised in accordance with the Freedom oflnformation 
Act, Section 30-4-80, S.C. Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 

SECTION IV 

Officers 

(a) Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be the chief officer of the Council. 

He/she shall be a member ex-officio of all committees and shall assign duties and tasks to the 
respective committees. He/she shall communicate to the Council such matters and make such 
suggestions as may in his/her opinion tend to promote the welfare and increase the usefulness of 
the Council , and shall perform such other duties as necessarily incident to the office. He/she shall 
be a voting member of the Council. 

(b) Secretary. The secretary shall be appointed by the Chairperson and shall be responsible 
for maintaining accurate records of the Council's activities. 

SECTIONV 

Committees 

Committees may be established from time to time by a majority vote of the Council. 

(a) Selection of Committees. The Chairperson of the Council shall appoint committee 
members. The appointments shall be effective immediately and committee members shall serve 
for a term of one ( 1) year and until successors are duly appointed. Vacancies that occur for 
whatever reason may be filled by the Chairperson of the Council for the unexpired term. 

(b) Chairpersons. The Chairperson of each committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson 
of the Council. He/she shall be responsible for directing and coordinating the affairs of the 
committee. 

Page I 2 

Page 294 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Exhibit A 

(c) Meetings. Committee meetings may be called at any time by the Committee 
Chairperson and must be called at any time by the Chairperson on the written request of a 
majority of the committee members. Five (5) day notice of any committee meeting must be 
given to the committee members. 

SECTION VI 

Voting 

In all meetings of the Council as a whole and of the committees, questions shall be 
resolved by majority vote of those members present, except that approval of the Council's 
management plan and its amendments and priorities shall require a two-thirds vote of those 
members present. l1he vote on a particular matter shall be tabulated by a roll call upon a motion 
to that effect being seconded by one (I) member. 

SECTION VIII 

Mail Vote 

When, in the judgment of the Council Chairperson, any questions, shall arise that should 
be put to a vote of the members, and when he/she deems it inexpedient to call a special meeting 
for that purpose, he/she may, unless otherwise required by these by-laws, submit the matter to 
the members in writing by mail (paper or electronic) for vote and decision, and the question thus 
presented shall be determined according to a majority of the votes received by mail (paper or 
electronic) within ten (10) days after such submission to the members, provided that, in each 
case, votes of at least six (6) of the members shall be received . Actions taken in this manner 
shall be ratified and included as a part of the minutes of the next regular meeting. · 

SECTION VIII 

Amendments 

These by-laws may be amended, repealed or altered, in whole or in part, by a two-third 
vote at any regular meeting of the Council. 

Page I 3 

Page 295 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT K - CONSERVATION DISTRICT MONTHLY 
REPORT EXAMPLE 

 
 
Soil and Water Conservation Districts-September 2017 Monthly Report Examples 

Page 296 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Exhibit D 

Soil and Water Conservation Districts-September 2017 Monthly Report 
Examples 

Statewide Projects 
DNR staff participated in the Annual Meeting of the National Association of State 
Conservation Agencies {NASCA). Marc Cribb serves as NASCA President and Chris 
Workman made presentations at the field staff sessions on 2 unique projects in South Carolina. 
This meeting was held in conjunction with the National Watershed Coalition and was attended 
by state conservation agency managers and watershed managers from around the country. Staff 
met with the SC Association of Conservation Districts Executive Committee. Staff participated 
in the East Piedmont Area Conservation Districts meeting, hosted by the Lancaster District. 
The meeting was held at the Haile Gold Mine and featured a tour of the mine. DNR's Lorianne 
Riggin spoke on DNR' s mitigation and protection of threatened and endangered species. Staff 
participated in the Edisto-Savannah Valley Area Conservation Districts meeting, hosted by the 
Aiken District and the Pee Dee Area hosted by the Horry District. Staff participated on the 
Annual State Meeting of the SC District Employees ' Association. 

Technical 
DNR staff completed highly erodible land determinations in Aiken, Greenville, Spartanburg, 
Edgefield, and Cherokee Districts; provided assistance on multiple Farm Bill contracts in 
Greenville District. Provided a new Saluda District landowner with assistance and information 
on Farm Bill programs and the application process. Contacted and scheduled producers for on 
Farm Energy Assessments and performed Energy Audits in Orangeburg District. Staff 
performed easement inspections in Abbeville, Chesterfield, Clarendon, Fairfield, 
Georgetown, and Sumter Districts . Staff participated in the Annual Exotic Pest Plant Council 
meeting. Staff certified Best Management Practices in Aiken and Lexington Districts and 
performed a spot check on a Wetlands Reserve Program site in Orangeburg District. Staff 
continue to work on high tunnel housing in Dorchester, Hampton, Orangeburg and 
Clarendon Districts. Staff assisted NRCS and met with producers to discuss invasive weed 
control efforts on their land. Prepared sod samples for the rainfall simulator demonstration at the 
Greenville District's exhibit for goat and sheep workshop and prepared root boxes with winter 
cover crops for future rainfall simulator demonstrations. 

Outreach 
DNR staff participated in events in the Aiken, Lancaster, Greenville, and Horry Districts. 

Conservation Districts 
Aiken District hosted the Edisto-Savannah Valley Area Conservation Districts Meeting. 
Representatives and staff from six Edisto-Savannah Valley Area districts , NRCS partners, 
and SCACD representatives toured Walther Farms in Windsor, SC and learned of SCACD and 
NACD updates. The Aiken Board of Commissioners presented Jeremy Walther and his team 
with an award to recognize their outstanding commitment to soil and water conservation during 

Page I 1 

Page 297 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



the meeting. District staff and SCDNR staff made a presentation about soil health and quality to 
50 college students at Piedmont Technical College. District staff along with Greenville District 
staff coordinated the SC Conservation District Employee Association Annual training in 
Greenville. The district employees learned of several free and low-cost educational resources 
available to conservation district employees. Attendees also enjoyed an eco-tour at Lake 
Jocassee and received updates from our partners at the partnership dinner. District staff assisted 
in the processing of EQIP Farm Bill applications and scheduled field visits. Staff also assisted in 
the processing of payments, mailing out customer folders, and mailing out annual letters. 

Bamberg District hosted its annual Local Work Group Meeting to set local resource priorities 
for USDA Farm Bill programs. There were some great suggestions brought to the table. 

Beaufort District worked with Jasper District to host the Local Work Group Meeting to set the 
Farm Bill resource concerns and priorities for the counties . The meeting was held at the Blue 
Heron Nature Center. Trail coordinators and staff have been working with several partners to 
apply for a SCPRT grant to build a kayak launch at the Whale Branch Fishing Pier. This is the 
fourth kayak trail for Beaufort Blueways. It has been mapped with GPS coordinates and helpful 
hints are posted on line at http://beaufortblueways.info/WhaleBranch.html. Educators are 
meeting with teachers and arranging programming for the school year and presented 4 soil tunnel 
programs. 

Berkeley District is working with County officials to compose a draft of Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan. District is working with NRCS and County officials in fulfilling an Emergency 
Watershed Program contract to help with damage from the 2015 flooding in several areas of the 
county. Staff and Commissioners seeking to further a habitat restoration project by looking for 
partners and funding through grants. Monthly berkeleybees meeting was held with the 
subject of "robbing behaviors in honeybees." Staff conducted two community education 
programs on honeybees and pollination. Staff and Commissioners working on application for 
one of our Blueways paddling trails to be listed on the National Trail Designation. Associate 
Commissioner attended several festivals, along with other outreach events to promote the 
Berkeley Blueways Paddling Trails. Staff attended a Healthy Pond Seminar hosted by Clemson 
Extension . The district ' s Feral Hog Project in conjunction with APHIS and Farm Bureau has 
started and we have 4 landowners currently on the list for service for trapping of hogs on their 
property. Berkeley District hosted the Local Work Group meeting with NRCS for local farmers, 
landowners and stakeholders to voice their needs from the Distri.ct and NRCS and Farm Bill for 
financial and technical assistance. Staff working on fall newsletter. 

Charleston District is planning a Soil Heath Day Workshop. The district will partner this event 
with Clemson Extension and the Beginning Farmer Program. The district is also planning 
outreach programs for Arbor Day to be held in December. The District has sponsored 3 Pet 
Waste Dispensers to promote and support "Keep Charleston Beautiful." 

Cherokee District has been busy getting rental equipment ready for the planting season. 
Thorough maintenance and parts replacement has been completed on the equipment. 
The District, in conjunction with Thicketty Creek Watershed District has been working to 
identify the inundation areas and completing emergency action plans for the 6 watershed dams in 

Page J 2 

Page 298 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



the county. DHEC completed inspections on the dams in early September. Chairman Sarratt, 
Commissioner Gettys, Commissioner Jane Waters, District Coordinator Allen, and District 
Conservationist Barrington attended the East Piedmont Area Meeting. Karen Allen attended the 
SCCDEA meeting in Greenville. 

Chesterfield District, cooperating with the Sandhill ' s Longleaf Pine Conservation Partnership, 
received confirmation of their fifth grant from the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation to 
assist landowners establish and maintain longleaf pines. Since 2010, the District has assisted 
NRCS and the Sandhill ' s Longleaf Pine Conservation Partnership establish over 15,000 acres of 
longleaf on private lands. The program is supported with Farm Bill funding. The District and 
Partnership are now focusing on education and promoting the use of prescribed fire as a 
management tool for landowners. The District has made prescribed fire possible for many 
landowners by its purchase of equipment needed to safely apply fire. This equipment is made 
available to landowners who wish to burn their own property. 

Clarendon District staff visited all the schools in Clarendon County to promote the education 
programs for this school year (contests, Envirothon, Youth Commissioners, scholarships). The 
District has assisted NRCS with obligating 2017 Farm Bill program contracts . The District also 
inspected the Pocotal igo Channel to ensure proper maintenance. District staff attended the 
SCCDEA training. The district employees and Commissioner Richburg attended the Pee Dee 
area meeting. The District has partnered with NRCS in conducting a 3 year study on the effects 
of cover crop and soil biology. Clarendon County Council signed a Prescribe Burning 
Resolution. 

Colleton District printed fliers for the Annual Conservation Poster and Essay Contests. The 
topic for both contest is "Watersheds - Our Water, Our Home". Rev. Gerald Mabry attended the 
Edisto/Savannah Area Meeting at Walther Farms. Commissioner 1.M. Benton attended a 
Cattleman ' s Meeting and a Young Farmers Meeting. 

Darlington District is currently organizing a Project Wet Training Class. The training will be 
for Darlington County Teachers so they can earn Continuing Education Credits .. The class will 
be held at Kalmia Gardens with Duke Progress Energy funding the costs of the training manuals. 
The District will provide funds for the teaching tools/goodie bags for the attendees. District staff 
continues to provide Farm Bill program assistance. 

Dorchester District held a Local Work Group meeting held annually to discuss Farm Bill 
resource concerns within the county. The District held its monthly regular business meeting right 
after the local work group. Clemson agent Jacqueline Forsyth with the Forestry and Clemson 
agent Parker Johnson attended the meeting along with Clemson row crop agent Jonathan Croft. 
The District has kicked off its yearly photo contest with all letters and info being mailed to the 
public and private schools in our county. 

Edgefield and Aiken Districts are working with the City of Aiken and other partners on a water 
quality grant to address non-point source pollution in the Shaw' s Creek watershed. This grant 
will be addressing water quality and agricultural runoff in the 54,297 acre watershed that 
encompasses portions of Edgefield and Aiken Counties. Shaw' s Creek is the primary source 

Page 13 

Page 299 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



water for one of the City of Aiken ' s water treatment plant. Edgefield District staff have assisted 
with Farm Bill programs measuring firebreaks , water bars, and field status reviews. 

Fairfield District's NACD dues for 2017-18 have been paid . Information and reminders sent out 
to local schools regarding the Annual Photo Contest which runs from April 2017-April 2018. 
No-till drill has been in great demand the last few weeks. Continue to partner with NRCS 
regarding sign-ups for the Farm Bill conservation programs. NRCS personnel is meeting with 
landowners in the district office providing technical assistance. 

Georgetown District met with the new FF A teacher, Cody Floyd, at Georgetown High School 
and provided him with educational material. The District sponsored Andrews High School 
student, Lane Phillips, to attend the Aim-At-Ag Competition at the Back Woods Quail Club. 
The District also sponsored ten FF A students from Carver's Bay High School to attend a Chapter 
Officer Workshop at the Florence Recreation Center. Commissioners and staff attended the Pee 
Dee Area Meeting and tour of the L. W. Paul Living History Farm in Conway. Staff provided 
Farm Bill assistance to landowners. 

Greenville District taught at two Project WET workshops in September. One was at Sandhill 
for all state 4H coordinators and 32 attended and the other was at Winthrop University. The 
Greenville District delivered books and introduced them to the program with a few activities . 
Staff continues to work on the Reedy River Water Quality Group (RRWQG) Public Outreach 
Committee, updating the RR WQG website and Facebook, meeting with the Public Outreach 
committee and interfacing with the other committees and the public. Greenville staff helped host 
the South Carolina Conservation District Employees Association meeting. There was a 
Partnership meeting during the conference attended by Kenny Mullis, President of SCA CD, 
Marc Cribb and Chris Workman ofDNR. Staff attended the South Carolina Forage and Grazing 
Lands Coalition Board meeting in Blackville. Staff also ran the rainfall simulator and spoke 
about cover crops to the Southeast Goat and Sheep Symposium. The District Engineer worked 
on survey and design of a trout habitat project with NRCS in the Middle Saluda River. Staff 
continues to provide technical support on stormwater problems to County residents. 

Horry District held a meeting to publicly announce the Little Pee Dee - Chinners Creek 319 
grant that will help improve water quality along the Little Pee Dee River watershed. This 
meeting was well attended by local septic tank installers, DHEC personnel, and the local media. 
For more information read the article found in the local paper the Horry Independent 
https://www.myhorrynews.com/news/new-grant-he lps-landowners-improve-water
quality/article d4789fa4-9fe0- l I e7-870d-5b2c7de59c9a.html. The Horry County Local 
Workgroup meeting was held to discuss the natural resources issues in our county and to 
determine Farm Bill program priorities . Horry District hosted the Pee Dee Area Meeting and the 
meeting started with a tour of the L W Paul Living History Farm in Conway. The tour moved to 
the Johnny Shelley Agricultural Facility where State Representative Jeff Johnson updated the 
group on farm issues, SCACD President Mullins updated on SCACD, ending with DNR and 
NRCS representatives giving updates from the field. The District also is working to extend their 
USDA-NRCS grant for Cover Crop education and demonstrations and the USDA-NRCS 
contribution agreement to provide Farm Bill assistance. Planning is underway for the 401

h Horry 
County Awards Banquet, 2018 Essay Contest, as well as assist in county storm water projects 
and customer service to land users around our county. 

Page 14 

Page 300 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



At the Blue Heron Nature Center, the Jasper District hosted a meeting of the Jasper County 
Comprehensive Planning Steering Committee Public Meeting with 47 attendees. This meeting 
was for the public to express their concerns /suggestions for the growth of Jasper County. The 
public expressed their concerns of our natural resources and land use. The Local Work Group of 
Beaufort/Jasper Conservation Districts annual meeting focused on significant factors of 
determining how Farm Bill funds will be distributed to applicants in the Salkehatchie Watershed. 
The Jasper Farm Bureau held their annual meeting at the Nature Center. The Jasper County 
Chamber of Commerce awarded our Director, Lyn Tindal and the Jasper District with the 
Business Education Partner of the Year award. Tindal also partnered with Jasper County Schools 
for the District as a Stakeholder for the District to offer in class programs, field trips and 
recycling programs. 

Lee District helped install a high tunnel greenhouse for a local farmer. The district completed 
the annual budget and during the board meeting, discussed ways to pursue more funding, as well 
as what other district employees received in ways of benefits . District employee Megan Skinner 
will attend the Soil Health Field Day in Richland. The district continues to work closely with 
NRCS on contracting and ongoing projects. 

Lexington District Manager Oxner met with teachers and maintenance personnel to spot the 
location of the Observation Bee Hive to be placed at Irmo High School. Oxner conducted a rain 
barrel workshop for the community, there were ten participates at Gibson Park in 
Lexington. Commissioners Nates and Padget, Manager Oxner and Administrative Assistant 
Blum attended the East Piedmont Area meeting and toured the OceanaGold/Haile Operation in 
Kershaw. Lexington Commissioners discussed the SC Conservation Bank and its future funding. 
The district supports the Bank and its role in land protection around the state. NRCS District 
Conservationist Rafael Mendez presented the 2018 Farm Bill Local Work Group Resource 
Concerns for animal waste, cropland, forestland , and pastureland. Oxner attended the State 
Beekeepers Association Meeting, SC Fertilizer and AgChem meeting, DHEC meeting for the 
Western Capacity Water Area, and weekly Lexington County Department Head meetings. 

McCormick District is working on an appreciation dinner to be held October 5 and is also 
working with Clemson Extension on Farm City Day to be held October l 0 for 3 rd grade students 
and it will be held at John DelaHowe School. 

Oconee District closed on another conservation easement of 95 acres protecting prime and 
statewide soils within a natural belt of some of the best soils in the state. This project continues 
to encourage landowners to preserve our best working soils in the county. The District donated 
two rain barrels to the Oconee Cultivation Project, a soil to table educational program teaching 
high school students seed to harvest farming techniques and self-sustainability. The district 
manager presented a series called Environment and Health to 9th grade health classes. The intent 
was to link environment and health and show how one ' s health can be improved by a healthy 
environment and the steps necessary to implement a clean environmental mindset. District 
personnel have helped Clemson Extension prepare for the upcoming South Carolina Heritage 
Fair. This fair intends to be the classic event with farm and live animal displays and judging; 
food contests, and agricultural education. 

Page I 5 

Page 301 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Richland District conducted ten forestry and soil science class presentations for 181 students at 
four schools and hosted a conservation education exhibit at the Summer Celebration of Water. 
The District partnered with USDA-NRCS to host a Farm Bill Local Work Group meeting. One 
livestock farmer committed to participate in the Twenty-five Mile Creek Watershed 319 program 
by installing stream exclusion fencing, alternate water sources, and cross fencing for rotational 
grazing. Staff and commissioners participated in the SCA CD East Piedmont Regional Meeting, 
SCCDEA Employee Workshop, SC Forage and Grazing Lands Coalition board meeting, 
Environmental Education Association of SC board meeting, and SC Green Steps Schools 
Training. Staff provided technical assistance for an erosion issue at one school. 

Spartanburg District staff completed the fall issue of the Conservation Chronicle Newsletter. 
Landowners are renting the district's no-till drill for fall planting. The district supplied plants and 
soil for a butterfly and pollinator garden at Campobello Gramling School. Under the EQIP Farm 
Bill Program, 469 acres are under contract in 2017 to address forestry, cropland, and pastureland 
conservation. Eleven Farm Bill Conservation Stewardship Program contracts have been 
completed by NRCS. DNR' s Drew Williams is assisting with Highly Erodible Land 
determinations. 

York District Commissioners Senn, Copeland and Palmer attended the East Piedmont tour and 
dinner and Coordinator O ' Connell attended the SCCDEA conference in Greenville. Senn, 
Palmer and O'Connell attended meetings of the Agri-Tourism committee investigating the 
possibility of establishing a facility in York County. Coordinator O ' Connell conducted the 
September lesson in the school garden series for 18 classes of first graders. Preparations have 
begun for the District's annual legislative dinner held in partnership with York County Farm 
Bureau, scheduled for October 12. 

Page / 6 

Page 302 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT L - SCENIC RIVER CRITERIA 
 
 
Criteria for Eligibility and Classification of South Carolina State Scenic Rivers as of October 2017 

Page 303 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Exhibit E 

Criteria for Eligibility and Classification of 
South Carolina State Scenic Rivers 

South Carolina Department of Natural Resources 
Scenic Rivers Program 

October 2017 

Introduction 

The South Carolina Scenic Rivers Act in Section 49-29-70 says eligible rivers for State Scenic 
River designation must possess unique or outstanding scenic, recreational , geologic, botanical, 
fish , wildlife, historic, or cultural values. To determine if a proposed river or river segment 
possesses any or all of these characteristics, the South Carolina Department of Natural Resources 
(SCDNR) conducts a study to assess the river' s eligibility and classification under the Scenic 
Rivers Program. The study of scenic river eligibility considers a geographic area referred to as a 
" river corridor" which includes the riverine-aquatic environments and the adjacent riparian
wetland-terrestrial environments associated with rivers. 

Eligibility Criteria for South Carolina Scenic Rivers 

The following list presents a description of criteria used by the SCDNR for evaluating the 
eligibility of rivers in South Carolina for designation as State Scenic Rivers. 

Land Use and Ownership Patterns 

Land use and ownership patterns affect the character and quality of rivers and present different 
management alternatives for the Scenic Rivers Program. Land use and ownership patterns can be 
important factors affecting scenic quality, wildlife habitat, and water quality. 

Two measures of land use on the river are taken: First, the acreages of general land use 
categories within the river corridor are measured (corridor defined by at least one-half mi le on 
either side of river channel). Second, the river mileage that is visually affected by human 
development is estimated and compared to the river mileage that remains visually natural. 

Ownership patterns are assessed by considering the size and distribution of land parcels along the 
river or within a defined river corridor. 

Note: Land use conditions in the river corridor are the determining factor for how a river is 
classified within State Scenic River Program. After the river is determined eligible, it is 
classified according to the category (natural, scenic, or recreational rivers per Section 49-29-40) 
that best fits each eligible river segment. Classification is based on the degree of naturalness and 

Page 11 

Page 304 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



extent of development on the river and adjacent lands at the time of the study. 

Scenic Characteristics 

Evaluating the scenic resources of a river involves consideration of the overall impression 
created by characteristics such as landforms, vegetative diversity, natural colors in the landscape, 
diversity of views, human effects, and special features considered unique, outstanding, or notable 
as a scenic resource. 

The inventory of land use and human development, described above, is considered for scenic 
characteristics; in particular, a comparison of river miles visually affected by human 
development versus river miles that remain visually natural is a measure related to scenic 
character. 

Recreational Values 

The recreational values are assessed by considering the importance of existing and potential 
recreational uses of the river and adjacent lands, and features considered unique, outstanding, or 
notable as a recreational resource . Other factors considered are river access facilities and 
proximity to population centers . Recreation information sources include the South Carolina 
Rivers Assessment, SCDNR creel surveys, SCPRT's SC Outdoor Recreation Plans (SCORP) 
and related surveys, river guide books, local outfitters and county recreation officials. 

Geological Resources 

The geologic resources of interest on scenic rivers are features, processes, or phenomena that are 
considered unique, outstanding, or notable. These could include features of rare or unusual 
geologic composition or appearance, such as waterfalls, bluffs, unusual rock formations and 
outcrops, or river features/formations such as oxbow lakes and braided channels. 

Botanical Values 

Botanical values are assessed by considering the natural communities and species that exist 
within the river corridor. The extent of high quality natural communities, communities of special 
significance, such as unusual or diverse plant communities, and threatened or endangered species 
habitat are considered. 

Fish and Wildlife Values 

Fish and wildlife values are assessed by considering the habitat qualities and wildlife populations 
in the river corridor. Habitats of special significance for both game and non-game species, 
habitats for threatened or endangered species, and the abundance and diversity of habitats and 
species are considered. 

Historic and Cultural Values 

The historic and cultural values of the river are assessed by considering the importance of 

Page 12 

Page 305 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



historical and prehistorical events, uses, structures, and artifacts and other features of the river 
corridor that may be considered unique, outstanding, or notable as a historic or cultural resource. 

Water Quality 

To assess water quality, the river's water classification, water quality trends, and related water 
quality problems are considered. The water quality in scenic rivers should meet or exceed the 
relevant state water quality standards. 

Stream flow 

To assess stream flow, the issues of minimum flow, navigation, and natural stream conditions are 
considered. There should be a sufficient flow during normal rain years to support the traditional 
instream uses and expected aquatic-life uses of the stream. The impact of dams and water 
diversions on stream flow should be considered. When navigational use is important, the 
streamflow should be sufficient for safe navigation . 

Classification of State Scenic Rivers 

After a river is determined to be eligible for State Scenic River designation, it is classified as 
natural, scenic, or recreational, according to the type(s) that best fit the river; one or more 
classification types may be determined along the length of a given river. Land use conditions are 
the determining factor for how a river is classified within State Scenic River Program. 

Classification is based on the degree of naturalness and extent of development on the river and 
adjacent lands at the time of the study. The general descriptions for the three river classifications 
are as follows: 

• 

• 

• 

Natural rivers -- free flowing (without impoundment, diversion, or other modification to the 
waterway), generally inaccessible except by trail or river, with essentially undeveloped 
shorelines and unpolluted waters. 

Scenic rivers -- essentially free flowing with largely undeveloped shorelines and limited road 
access; adjacent lands are used for dispersed human activities, such as agriculture, 
silviculture, and others, which do not disturb the natural character of the river. 

Recreational rivers -- have more access and development along the shoreline and should 
possess outstanding river-related recreational opportunities. 

Page I 3 

Page 306 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT M - WILDLIFE LAW ENFORCEMENT 
OFFICER SALARIES ACROSS STATES  

 
 
SCDNR obtained the information from Colonel Henderson with Georgia DNR, who obtained it from a 2015 
salary study.  
 
 

Page 307 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Page 308 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



EXHIBIT N - INTERNAL AFFAIRS PROCEDURE  
 
 
SCDNR Law Enforcement Division Directive D321 addresses internal affairs and the complaint procedure.

Page 309 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
LAW ENFORCEMENT DIVISION DIRECTIVE 

DIRECTIVE #: D 321 PAGE I OF 4 

SUBJECT: COMPLAINT PROCEDURE, fNTERNAL AFFAIRS DATE: NOV 21 , 1997 

RELATED DIRECTIVES, ST ANDA RDS. ETC. : LAST REVISION: SEP 1, 2011 

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY: DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CREATE AN 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE EMPLOYEE AND THE AGENCY. 
THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CREATE ANY CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OR 
ENTITLEMENTS. THE AGENCY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE THE 
CONTENT OF THIS DOCUMENT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART. NO PROMISES OR 
ASSURANCES, WHETHER WRITTEN OR ORAL, WHICH ARE CONTRARY TO OR 
INCONSISTANT WITH THE TERMS OF THIS PARAGRAPH CREATE ANY 
CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT. 

PURPOSE: The purpose of this directive is to establish guidelines and procedures for receiving, 
reporting, investigating, and adjudicating allegations of officer misconduct. 

DIRECTIVE: It is essential that the Division's personnel and the citizens of this state have 
confidence in these who exercise law enforcement authority. This requires procedures for 
adequate and expeditious processing of allegations of misconduct by employees. 

All employees will comply with agency rules, regulations and directives. All employees will be 
held strictly accountable for properly exercising the authority they have been given. At the same 
time, employees must be protected against false allegations of misconduct. This can only be 
accomplished through a consistently thorough investigative process. 

PROCEDURES: 
A. Internal Affairs Function 

1) The Deputy Director of Law Enforcement is responsible for the administration of internal 
affairs function. An lnternal Affairs Officer {IAO) will assist the Deputy Director for 
Law Enforcement with this responsibility, by: 
(a) Receiving, documenting, and maintaining files on all information pertaining to 

allegations of employee misconduct. These files will be maintained in a secure area 
separate from the personnel and other records. 

(b) Conducting, supervising or coordinating the investigation of alleged or suspected 
misconduct within the Law Enforcement Division or within other Divisions upon 
authorization from the Director. 

(c) Maintaining the confidentiality of all internal affairs investigations and records to the 
maximum extent allowed by law. 

Page 310 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



2) Appropriate logs for complaints will be maintained by both the IAO and each Region 
Captain or section head. 

B. Categories of co·mplaint 
1) Low Infraction-Allegations that involve: 

(a) Misunderstandings between a citizen and an employee. 
(b) Breaches of policies or directives of less serious nature. 

2) High Infraction 
(a) All allegations brought against an employee of a criminal nature or serious enough to 

warrant personnel action such as suspension or termination. Allegations of felonious 
conduct may be reported to SLED or other appropriate law enforcement authority. 

C. Procedure for Accepting Allegations Against Agency Members 
1) Any citizen complaint, regardless of category, shall be accepted whether it is in person, 

by phone, or in writing, and an appropriate investigation conducted. Irrational complaints 
and complainants who exhibit behavior generally associated with some form of dementia 
or substance abuse may be noted. 

2) An employee who received an initial complaint shall direct the complaint or written 
complaint to the affected Region Captain or Deputy Director for Law Enforcement. 

IMPORT ANT: othing contained herein should be constructed so as to prevent any person 
with information about misconduct from going directly to the Deputy Director for Law 
Enforcement. 

D. High Infraction 
1) In all high infractions, the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement will be notified in a 

timely manner of the allegation. In addition the agency will acknowledge receipt of the 
complaint in the appropriate manner. 

E. Assignment of the Investigation 
Allegations of a high infraction shall be assigned for investigations in the following manner: 
1) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement shall assign a supervisor to investigate the 

allegation as soon as possible or refer the matter to the IAO or another investigative 
agency if he feels it is warranted. 

F. Notification to Officers of Internal Affairs Investigation 
1) The Employee of an internal affairs investigation will be informed of any allegations 

usually from the affected Captain, provided that investigations conducted by external 
authorities may control when the officer is informed. 

G. Responsibilities of Employee 
1) Employees will cooperate fully with any internal investigation. Employees are expected 

to answer questions specifically and narrowly related to the subject of the investigation 
and may be compelled to answer questions relating to non-criminal conduct or criminal 
conduct which will not be prosecuted. 

H. Polygraph Examinations 
l) The polygraph may be used in any matter for detection of deception, provided no 

employee shall be required to submit to examination except with the expressed approval 
of the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director. Any ordered examination must 
be in accordance with the "Garrity" decision of the United States Supreme Court. Refusal 

2 

Page 311 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



to submit to such examination may result in disciplinary action in accordance to the 
Standards of Disciplinary Action Policy #701.03. 

I. Further Testing or Disclosures 
I) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director may require an employee in any 

matter to submit to any following test or disclosure when specifically directed and 
narrowly related to the subject of an internal investigation. Failure to follow a direct order 
of this nature may result in disciplinary action against an employee in accordance to the 
Standards of Disciplinary Action, Policy #701.03. 

J. Employee Rights 
l) Employees have the same rights guaranteed to all citizens by the Constitution and laws of 

the State of South Carolina and of the United States. 
2) For high infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 

start of initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director citing 
the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation the assigned investigator 
will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director informed. 

3) Employees have the right 
(a) to be treated fairly , 
(b) to be informed of allegations, 
(c) to have complaints investigated, and 
(d) to be afforded an opportunity to present evidence on their behalf. 

K. Adjudication of Allegation of Employee Misconduct 
I) For high infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 

start of initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director citing 
the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation the assigned investigator 
will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director informed. 

2) For low infractions, internal investigations will be completed within 180 days from the 
start of the initial complaint. If an extension is necessary, the assigned investigator will 
request an extension from the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or the Director or 
respective Captain citing the extenuating circumstances. Throughout the investigation, 
the assigned investigator will keep the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director 
or affected Captain informed. 

3) Upon conclusion of an investigation the investigator will forward all information to the 
Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director or other senior staff members, or 
affected Captain. 

4) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or Director or effected Captain shall review 
the facts and determine whether the complaint should be classified as: 
(a) Unfounded-Evidence sufficient to conclude that the complaint is groundless. 
(b) Exonerated-Actions taken by employee were lawful and proper. 
(c) Not sustained-Insufficient evidence exists to either prove or disprove the complaint. 
(d) Sustained-Sufficient evidence exists to conclude the allegation is correct. 

5) If the allegation is sustained based on the facts of the investigation, the Deputy Director 
of Law Enforcement, Director, senior staff member or affected Captain wil 1 take 
appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with Standards of Disciplinary Action 

3 

Page 312 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



Policy after consultation with the office of Human Resources. 
6) Complainants will be informed at the conclusion or resolution of an investigation. 

NOTE: In all investigations where the complaint is classified as "Unfounded", 
"Exonerated" or "Not Sustained" the employee will be notified in writing that the 
investigation has been closed and how the investigation was classified. 

K. Criminal Prosecution Liaison 
I) In the event of any criminal prosecution resulting from an investigation of alleged officer 

misconduct, the Deputy Director for Law Enforcement or his designee will maintain 
communication with the appropriate investigating agency and or prosecutor. 

L. Notification of High Authority 
l) The Deputy Director for Law Enforcement periodically will apprise the Director of all 

internal investigations and will promptly inform the Director of all serious allegations 
made against DNR officers. 

APPROVED: 

A.C. Frampton, Colonel 

4 

Page 313 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



COMMITTEE CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 314 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 

Page 315 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017



 

1 Program Evaluation Report, Organizational Units Chart 
2 Agency PER at page 47. 

Page 316 of 316 
Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice Subcommittee 

November 30, 2017


	Agenda
	Meeting Minutes - Oct. 23
	Meeting Minutes - Nov. 6
	Study Timeline
	Agency Summary Data
	Follow Up Information
	Agency Follow Up Information
	Agency Law Recommendations
	Table 1.1
	Table 1.2

	Human Resources
	Office of Media and Outreach
	Office of Support Services - IT
	Office of Support Services - Finance
	Marine Resources Division
	Land, Water, and Conservation Division
	Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Division
	Office of Environmental Programs
	Law Enforcement Division
	Exhibit A - Hiring Procedure
	Exhibit B - Promotional Plan
	Exhibit C1 - Law Enforcement Officer Career Path
	Exhibit C2 - Marine Resources Division Pay Plan
	Exhibit C3 - Wildlife and Freshwater Fisheries Pay Plan
	Exhibit C4 - Boat Titling and Registration Clerks Career Path
	Exhibit D - Bonuses
	Exhibit E - Satisfaction Survey Results (Feb. 1, 2006)
	Exhibit F - Drug Testing Policies
	Exhibit G - Vacant Positions
	Exhibit H - Exit Interview Forms
	Exhibit I -  Fee comparison across states
	Exhibit J - Aquatic Plant Management Council By Laws
	Exhibit K - Conservation District MOnthly Report Example
	Exhibit L - Scenic River Criteria
	Exhibit M - Wildlife Law Enforcement Officer salaries across states
	Exhibit N - Internal Affairs Procedure
	Committee Contact Information



